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VISION
Be a leading 
Modaraba in 
providing 
Shariah 
compliant 
financial 
facilities 
through 
innovative 
products and 
services.

MISSION

To achieve excellence 
in our chosen markets 
in accordance with 
Islamic principles of 
finance in a 
professional manner 
with high ethical 
standards supported 
by state of art services 
through efficient 
distribution channels 
for sustainable growth 
and better return to 
our investors.
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Chairman‘s Messsage

In the end, I express appreciation to my Board Members for their continued support, strategic 
guidance and for their prudent and invaluable contributions in formulating policies and guidelines in 
all areas of operations. I would like to thank each and every member of the Board for their guidance, 
valuable input and giving their precious time for Board meetings. 

Chairman

Dear Modaraba Certificate Holders,

I am pleased to present report to our valued Certificate Holders on the affairs of Habib Metro 
Modaraba (HMM) for the year ended 30th June, 2020. 

I am happy to note that HMM's auto finance product “InstaCar”, which is based on Residual Value 
financing has gradually getting popularity and all efforts are being put-up by the team of HMM for 
the success of this product. In fact, the sudden change in the global economic conditions in general 
and in our country in particular due to the Corona virus coupled with increase in car prices and huge 
increase in KIBOR which was more than 13% from July 2019 to March 2020 i.e., till beginning of 
COVID 19 which has completely discouraged prospective customers to go for auto financing facility, 
therefore, the desire target of financing and market penetrations were not achieved. 

Date: September 23, 2020

At present our economy is passing through with difficult time. Way forward, I expect that overall 
business conditions will be remained in pressure during current year due to several economic 
challenges. Operating in a volatile environment becomes even more challenging given the fact that 
our customers are the first to be affected in an economic slowdown. In these unusual circumstances, 
a cautious approach should be adopted while engaging in new booking of financing assets. I am 
hopeful that our competent team will continue to grow in prudent manner, will set new milestones 
and deliver even better result in coming years.   

Syed Rasheed Akhtar

The emergence of COVID-19 has caused major disruptions to economic activity around the world 
including Pakistan. The year 2020 has been a challenging year for the world. The COVID-19 pandemic 
which has spread rapidly brought severe shocks to global economy and human health. It created 
uncertainties on different economic front and is expected to have a lasting effect on the global 
economy. Presently, the economic growth has slowed down globally and it appears a moderate pace 
of expansion is unlikely to achieve in the near future. The pandemic has also taken a devastating blow 
on Pakistan's socioeconomic fabric and public health system. The country's economy demonstrated 
its worst performance posted negative growth in FY 2019-20. 

I also wish to commend our Chief Executive Officer, Senior Executives and all other staff members of 
HMM for their hard work, dedication and focused efforts for satisfactory results of HMM.  I place my 
sincere appreciation to our Certificate Holders, business partners and all other valued stakeholders 
for their conviction and the confidence place in our organization. I take this opportunity to thank 
Registrar of Modaraba, Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan, State Bank of Pakistan, 
Pakistan Stock Exchange, and other relevant regulatory bodies for their continued guidance and 
support extended to us.
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�� �� ��ن،�������� �م �ر� �

�  ٣٠ �ن، ٢٠٢٠ � � �� �ل � �  �  �و �ر� (ا� ا� ا� )  � ا�ر � �رے � �رے �� �ر �� ��رز � ر�رٹ � �� � �� �۔

�� ����  ر�ل ر�۔ ����� � /� / � /د�ا  �COVID-19 �ر � ��ن � د� � � �� ���ں � �ى ر�و� �ى �۔ �ل ٢٠٢٠ د� � � ا� 
�

 COVID-19و�� �رى � � �ى � � �� �� � اور ا�� � � �� � / د� د� �۔ اس � � �� �ذ � � � �ر�ل �ا �دى اور �� �

 ل� ر�ر �  � �� � � اس � �� � � د�� ا� �ے �۔ اس و� �� � �� � � � �� � اور ا� � � � � �� � اس � و� � ا� ا�ا

�ل � �� ا�ن � �۔ اس و�� �ض � ��ن � ��� �� �� اور � �� � �م � � �ہ � د� � �۔ � � � ا� ��� �ر�د� � ��ہ �� 

�� �� �ل ٢٠١٩-٢٠ � � ���ى �۔

��  ہ آ� آ� �ل �� �ر� �  اور ا� ا� ا� � ��� � � ا�ر ��  و � �ى  �� ��  � �و �ر� � آ� �� �وڈ�  ’’ا� �ر‘‘ � �رے � ، � � ر�ا�ل و�  �

��� � �ف �  � �� اور � � � � � � اُس � ر� د�� �وع �د� �،   �و� وا�س � و� � ا�� � �� ��  ��  ��ت ��  �رے � �  ��� �� �� �� � � ���روں � �� �ں اور ��ر �KIBOR � ز�دہ ��  � � ��� ٢٠١٩ � �رچ ٢٠٢٠ � ١٣ � �ھ � �، �و�- ١٩  � آ�ز  �  آ� � � اور �ر� � اس � �ؤ  � �ف �� � ��۔��� وا� � ��ں � � �ر � �� � � ، �  � و� �  ��  �

 ن�� �ر � �رو�رى ��ت د�ؤ � ر�   ں�ل � دورا  ردور � �ر ر� �، � �� � � �د �� �ں � و� � روا � ا�ل � ا��  � /�/د�ا

 ن� ��  ���۔ � � ��ل � �م �� اس � � ز�دہ � � �� � � اس � � د� �� � �رے �� �� � روى � � � � �� �� �۔ ا  زا�� ��۔ � ا� � � �رى ا�/�� � �ارى � �� �� �� ر� � ، � � � � ���  فر� �� �ط ا�ا � ا��ں � � � � �و ��ت �، �

�ے � اور آ� وا� ��ں � اس � � � � � �ے �۔

 ن� اور �رڈ �����  ف�� �� �ں۔ � �رڈ � � � � ر��، � ا �� ر�� اور � � اور � �ل �ا� � ا�ا آ� �، � �رڈ آف ڈا��ز � � �� ، ا�

 ن� �� � ادا �� �ں۔ � ا��ں � � ا� � و� د� � ا

 ن� � � ، � اور ��ز ��ں � ذر� �ا�ں � ا�ات � �� �� �  � ا� � ا�� آ�، � ا��ز اور ا� ا  � ا� � د� �م � � �وں � � ا

روں اور دو�ے �م �� �ر ا�   ن� �� �� �� �ں۔ � �رے �� ��رز ، �رو�رى �ا� دا �� اور ا� ا� ا� � � � �� �ا �� � � ا
��ر� ا� ا� � آف ��ن ، ا� � آف ��ن ، ��ن ا�ك ا� ������ ��رز � ا� � اور �رى � � ا�د � � ا� �� �� �� �ں۔ � �ر� ، 

  �� �ں۔  ن� �� ادا  ن� � ر�� اور �د � � ا  ر� ا روں � ر�ا ، اور د� � ر��ى ادا

� ر� ا�

��

�ر�: ٢٣ � ٢٠٢٠
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Directors‘ Report 

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I am pleased to present the audited accounts of the Modaraba for 
the year ended June 30, 2020

(Rupees)

Profit before management fee 32,227,291
Modaraba Management Company's remuneration 3,222,729
Sales tax on Management Company's remuneration 418,955
Provision of  Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 571,712
Profit before taxation 28,013,895
Taxation -
Profit for the year 28,013,895
Unappropriated profit b/f 835,511

28,849,406

Appropriations

Cash Dividend @ 7% ( Re. 0.70 per certificate of Rs 10/- each) 21,000,000
Transfer to statutory reserves @ 20% of Profit 5,602,779
Unappropriated profit c/f 2,246,627

28,849,406

Dividend 

The Board of Directors of the Management Company has approved cash dividend of 7% (Re. 0.70 per 
Modaraba Certificate of Rs. 10/- each) for the financial year ended 30th June, 2020. (2019, @2.75% i.e. 
Re. 0.275 per certificate)

Economic Review

After the outbreak of COVID-19, The Government of Pakistan had also took bold initiative to fight with 
COVID-19 and announced several fiscal stimulus packages  to support the lower income group and 
manufacturing sector particularly export based entities. The Government had also announced 
incentive package and concession for the construction industries to generate employment and 
support housing related industries. State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) also took several measures to 
support various segment of the economy during crucial time of disease . The swift turnarounds on the 
path of macroeconomic adjustments have been witnessed through a broad-based adoption of 
stabilization measures and economic revival strategies and policies along with its timely 
implementation and required actions.  The initiatives and reforms supported well to minimize huge 
trade and current account deficit, steadying of foreign reserves and successful completion of IMF 
program.

The pandemic has terribly slowed down overall economic and businesses activities, due to said impact 
our assets financing particularly booking of financing assets were reduced to Rs. 79.053 million 

The economy of Pakistan had passed through with very difficult time during the period of July-19 to 
June-20. At the beginning of the fiscal year there were several economic challenges which in fact had 
started at the start of calendar of 2019. The key issues were high trade and current account deficit, 
high inflation and rising interest rates, weakening of Pak rupees. The outbreak of COVID-19 which 
started in later part of 3rd quarter had brought more distress and miseries on economic front. The 
Pandemic brought all business activities standstill with unparalleled and unforeseen impact in our 
lives, economies, our societies and livelihoods. 

Business Review of HMM

Financial Highlights 
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compared from last year to Rs. 169.338 million. However, despite off several economic and business 
challenges, our performance remain satisfactory in terms of increase in overall financing assets size 
and profitability. Our balance sheet size increase to Rs.195.0 million as compared to last year size of 
Rs.168.0 million.  Profit of the year has also been increased from Rs.11.094 million to Rs. 28.013 million 
which shows a good progress on earning side. 

We could not manage to increase financing assets size as target set at the beginning of the year.  The 
main reason of low disbursement was due to significant increase in car prices and huge rise in 
discount rate which ultimately increase normal lending rates. Due to COVID-19 business conditions 
were remained very depressed and entities and individuals had faced severe cash flow and liquidity 
issues. This situation also diluted timely repayment of borrowed facilities by the businesses and we 
had also experienced issues of repayment of such facilities within our existing financing portfolio. After 
the issuance of circular of SBP & SECP regarding acceptance of deferment/rescheduling request of 
customer, we had received several request of rescheduling of long term financing facility in last 
quarter of year under review. Our credit department had gone through with these request, made 
necessary assessment of merit of such requests and finalized processes with approval of Credit 
Committee and board of directors.  

Future Outlook

We expect that financial year 2020-21 will be also a challenging year due to after effects of pandemic 
on trade and industry and on overall businesses. Furthermore, the drastic cut in policy rate i.e., 6.25% 
in last 3-4 months will also reduce our earning on financing portfolio. Currently, the economic 
activities are now gradually picking up and according to market statistics the sale of auto mobile and 
sale of products of other major sector such as Cement, Steel and other allied products are also 
increasing. We expect that reduced lending rate will support to stimulate business activity in coming 
months. The landmark incentive package for construction industry will also support and boosts the 
allied industries and will generate employments. 

In conclusion, we are closely monitoring the situation in present difficult time.  Our most important 
task is to ensure safety of health of our staff members and best possible services to our worthy 
customers. Keeping in view of present circumstances, we will move forward in prudent manner with 
cautious approach and gear up all available resources to counter any operational and business 
contingencies.

Recovery of financing instalments remained most difficult area of our business operation during last 
quarter of financial year.  Due to depressed business conditions and long period of lockdown, the 
liquidity and cash cycle of our customers were badly affected. Several customers of our financing 
portfolio were not able to settle their monthly payment of financing instalments on time during the 
lockdown period. However, our recovery team has made their hard efforts for collection of monthly 
repayments and successfully managed said recovery segments at reasonable level.  

Shariah Compliance and Audit Mechanism

A fundamental requirement of an Islamic financial institution is that its whole business practices and 
operations are based on Shariah rules and principles. Islamic finance derives its value proposition from 
the application of Shariah contracts in financial transactions that provide for different risks and return 
profile.

Alhamdulillah, the management of Habib Metro Modaraba continuously focuses on Shariah 

Adherence to Shariah principles under such distinct contract preserves the validity and sanctity of any 
Islamic financial transactions. As such, HMM committed to upholding these principles via strict 
observance of the Shariah Governance Framework.

Adhering to the Shariah principles, Islamic financial system encourages risk - sharing, promotes 
entrepreneurship, discourages speculative behavior and emphasizes the sanctity of contracts.
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• Two new directors have been appointed within the Board i.e. Mr. Usman Nurul Abedin and Ms.  
Irum Saba.

Fee to Attend the Directors‘ Meeting

The Board of Directors and Audit Committee

The following changes have been taken place within Board of Directors of the Habib Metropolitan 
Modaraba Management Company (Private) Limited (the Company), the management Company of 
Habib Metro Modaraba since the Directors’ report for the year ended June 30, 2019.

HMM continues to encourage events and projects which focus on children, health and education in 
under privileged members of society. The Modaraba constantly strives to build trust and demonstrate 
respect for human dignity and rights in all relationships, including respect for cultures, customs and 
values of individuals and groups.

governance and compliance culture under guidance and supervision of our worthy Shariah advisor. 
However, continuous efforts have been made for its further improvement.

We feel that Shariah governance is our utmost responsibility and our team is fully committed as their 
prime objective for its perfection and flawless processes.

A complete Shariah Audit report of Shariah Advisor for the year ended June 30, 2020 is also attached 
with annual report.

Our business strategies are based on strong ethical foundation and concept of sustainable business to 
create maximum value for our stakeholders. Translating this believe our sustainability model is 
surrounding within our People, Organization and Planet.

Corporate Social Responsibility

• Mr. Wazir Mumtaz Ahmed has resigned from the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee. 

Accordingly, we have aligned our Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) initiatives to deliver on this 
commitment, and enhance community empowerment and responsible environmental management in 
a sustainable manner.

• Mr. Saaed ud din Khan has become member of the Audit Committee. 

• The new directors are having very diversified and rich experience of financial local and 
international  market particularly Islamic Banking, Trade Finance and Investment Banking. The 
Board welcome all new directors and hopeful that HMM will be greatly benefited with 
professional experience and expertise of newly inducted directors. 

• In order to comply the mandatory requirement of Code of Corporate Governance 2019, Ms. 
Irum Saba has been appointment as Female Director on the Board. 

Directors Training & Orientation

Majority of directors are compliant with necessary requirements of Directors Training Certificate at The 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), The Institute of Cost and Management 
Accountants of Pakistan (ICMAP) and Institute of Business Administration (IBA).

Chairman, Non-Executive Directors and independent director are entitled only for the fee for 
attending the meetings from the Modaraba Management Company. The levels of remuneration are 
appropriate and commensurate with the level of responsibility and expertise to govern the company 
successfully and with value addition. Further, the Executive director of the Modaraba Management 
Company does not earn any retention fee against the services provided by him in the capacity of Non-
Executive Director from any other entity.
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During the year, all board meetings have been arranged at Karachi in Management Company’s office 
and none of the meeting conducted outside Pakistan in order to avoid any extra expenses of outside 
meeting.

Board Meeting outside Pakistan

Foreign Directors

No Foreign directors exist on the Board of Modaraba Management Company.

A Statement showing pattern of Certificate Holding of the Modaraba and additional information as at 
June 30, 2020 is included in this report.

Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework

Pattern of Certificate Holders

The Directors are pleased to confirm compliance with Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework 
of the Securities & Exchange Commission Pakistan (SECP) and the Code of Corporate Governance for 
the following:

• Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial 
statements. Accounting estimates used are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

• The system of internal control is in place and has been effectively implemented. It is being  
continuously reviewed by internal audit and other such procedures.

• Male:  5

• There are no statutory payments on account of taxes, duties, levies and charges which are  
outstanding as on June 30, 2020 except for those disclosed in the financial statements.

1. The total number of Directors are Six as per the following:

The composition of the Board of Directors of the Company as on June 30, 2020 is as follows:

• Female:  1

• Proper books of accounts of the modaraba have been maintained.

• The financial statements, prepared by the management of the modaraba, present fairly its 
state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

•  Board   is satisfied with the Modaraba's ability to continue as a going concern.

• International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable to Modarabas in Pakistan, 
have been followed in preparation of financial statements and any departures there from have 
been adequately disclosed. Further, the management of the Modaraba appreciates the 
unreserved compliance of IFRS to the possible extent in order to promote the fair financial 
reporting.

Composition of the Board

• There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as 
detailed in the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019, except 
those mentioned in the statement of compliance with code of corporate governance.
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• Independent Directors:   2

• Non-Executive Directors:  2

Directors‘ attendance 

2. The number of Directors under respective categories are as follows:

During the year, Five Board meetings, Four Audit Committee meetings and One Human Resource 
Committee meetings were held. Attendance by each Director was as follows: 

• Executive Director:  1

• Female Director:    1

Name of Directors Boardof
Directors

Audit 
Committee

HR Committee

Syed Rasheed Akhtar 5 4 1
5 N/A N/A

Mr. Wazir Mumtaz Ahmed 2 1 1
Mr. Mohammad Shams Izhar 5 4 1

Mr. Saeed uddin Khan 5 3 N/A
Mr. Usman Nurul Abedin 2 N/A N/A

Ms. Irum Saba - N/A N/A

 

Mr. Muhammad Shoaib Ibrahim

Auditors

In the end, the Board appreciates dedication, high level of professionalism and hard work of 
employees   of your Modaraba for achieving excellent results.

Chief Executive Officer Director

Acknowledgement

The Board would like to express its sincere thanks and gratitude for the continued support and 
guidance provided by Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan, Registrar Modaraba Companies, 
Financial Institutions and State Bank of Pakistan from time to time, customers of the Modaraba for 
their patronage and business, Certificate holders who have remained committed to Habib Metro 
Modaraba.

Muhammad Shoaib Ibrahim Syed Rasheed Akhtar

Karachi:  September 23, 2020

Present auditors M/s. BDO Ebrahim and Co. Chartered Accountants, are being eligible to offer 
themselves for reappointment as auditors for the financial year ending June 30, 2021, however their 
appointment will be subject to approval from Registrar Modaraba Office.
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�ر� � � � �  ٣٬٢٢٢٬٧٢٩

� � � �و� � �و� � � ٤١٨٬٩٥٥

�ھ ور�ز و� � ٥٧١٬٧١٢

 ز� ٢٨٬٠١٣٬٨٩٥ �� �� ا

 -                                                                        �

�ل � �� ٢٨٬٠١٣٬٨٩٥

� ��ں � � � �ہ �� ٨٣٥٬٥١١

�رڈ آف ڈا��ز � �ب � ٣٠ �ن، ٢٠٢٠ � � �� وا� �ل � �ر� � آڈٹ �ہ /� �ہ ا�و�ٔ� � �� �ے � ��ِ �ت �۔

٣٢٬٢٢٧٬٢٩١ �� � � � �

� � �ہ �� ٢٬٢٤٦٬٦٢٧

:�� � ��

� �ح � � ���٥٬٦٠٢٬٧٧٩  ٢٠ � �� � (Statuary Reserve)

COVID-19  � � و�ء � � ، �� ��ن �COVID-19  �� � ��� ما�� اور � آ�� وا� �وپ اور  � �� �� � � �أت �ا� ا�ا
���� � � ا�ن � �۔ �� � �ا� �ں � روز�ر �ا �� اور ر�� � � �ں � �د� � �ا�ت � اور �� �آ�ى �دوں � �ون �� � � �� ا�ادى 

 نا�ا�ت   ن� � � �ت � �د � � � �د ا�ا�ت �۔ ا �ا�ت � � ا�ن � ۔ ا� � آف ��ن (ا� � �) � و�� ا�ات � ا� و� � دورا

 م� ��� � � اور � � ��ٹ ر�  اور ا��ت � �ے �� � �ر� اور �� ا�ؤ� �رے � � �� ، � � ذ�� � � �� اور آ� ا� ا� �و�ا

�و�� � �ى � � ا� �ح � �د �۔

٢٨٬٨٤٩٬٤٠٦ 

�� ��ہ

٢٨٬٨٤٩٬٤٠٦ 

 ن��ن � � � � و� � �ر ر� �۔ �� �ل � آ�ز � �د �� � در� � � در � ٢٠١٩ � آ�ز � �وع   ��� �٢٠١٩ �ن ٢٠٢٠ � دورا

�� �۔ ا� ��ت ا� �رت اور �� ا�ؤ� �رہ ، او� ا�اط زر اور �� �� �د � �ح ، ��� رو� � �ورى �۔  �COVID-19 � � � � � �ى 

� �� � آ� � �وع �ا �  اس � �� �ذ � �� ���ں اور �� ��۔اس و�� �ض � �م �رو�رى ���ں �رى ز��ں ، �ں ، ��وں اور ��ت 

� � �ل اور � �� ا�ات � �� روك د�۔

�٧ � �ب � � �� �ا� � (١٠رو� � ��  � ٠٫٧٠ �  � �� � ��) ٢١٬٠٠٠٬٠٠٠

ڈا��زر�رٹ
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�� � ا��ں � � � �� �ل � ��� ��و�� �ض � �� �� اور �رو�رى ���ں � � � �د� � ، اس و� � � �رے ا��ں � �� ا�� �ص �ر � � � ا��ں � �� ��� ١٦٩٫٣٣٨ � رو�� �� � � �� ٧٩٫٠٥٣ � رو��د� � ۔ ��،  �م �  �� اور �رو�رى  د�ار�ں � �و�د  �رى �ر�د� �� اور �

� �ب �  ا�ن � ر� �۔�رى � � � �� د� �ل � ١٦٨٫٠١٧ � رو� � �� � ١٩٥٫٢١١ � رو� �ھ � � ۔ اور اس �ل � �� � �ل 

� �� ١١٫٠٩٤ � رو� � �� ٢٨٫٠١٣ � رو� ر� � � � �� � �ب � ا� � �� �۔

��� ��� اور آڈٹ � ��ٔ �ر�  ��

�را � � � �� ا��ں  � ز�ِ �ا� ، ا�� ��� �م  ر� �� � �� ا�ا� �� �،  �رو�ر �  �وغ د� �، �� �وں � �� � �� � اور  ��وں � 

�� � زور د� �۔

�� � �ں � �ز�� � � � � �� ر�۔ ��س � �رو�رى ��ت اور �� �� �ك ڈاؤن � � و� � ���  ن�رے �رو�رى � � � ���� �ل � آ�ى � �� � دورا  ن�� �و�ں � �ں � ��� ��� � �رٹ �� � �د �ر� �ك ڈاؤن �ت � دورا ، �رے �ر� � ��� اور � �� �ى �ح �� �� �۔ �رے �

 ن� � �۔ ادا� و� � � � � � �۔ �� ، �رى ر�رى � � ��� ادا�ں � � �� � � ا� ��ر �� � اور ��� � ��   ا

�� ���� �  ر� � اور اس � ا� �رت، � اور �� �ر � �م  �رو�ر � ر� �۔ �� �آں ، ����� � � �� �ر� � � �� �ل ٢٠٢٠-٢١ �    و�� �ض � و� � � /�/ 

 ے�۔ � ا�ل ، ا�دى ���ں اب آ� آ�  �� � �ح � ز�د� � � �� ٣-�٤ں � ٦٫٢٥ � � �� ا�� وا� �رٹ �� � �رى آ�� � � �د

�ھ ر� � اور �ر� � ا�ادو�ر � �� آ� ��� � �و� اور دو�ے �ے �ں � � ، ا� اور د� وا� ��ت � �و� � � ا�� �ر� �۔ � 

 ے�۔ �ا� � � � ا� �� � � وا� �ں � �د اور �وغ  �� �� � � �� � � �ح آ� وا� �ں � �رو�رى ���ں � � �� � �د د

� � اور روز�ر �ا ��۔

آ� � ، � ��دہ � و� � �ر�ل � �ى �ہ ر� �� �۔ �را � � ا� �م �رے � � �وں � � � �� اور �رے �� �ر� � �� � 

 ز� آ� �� � اور � � آ�� اور �رو�رى �� �ر�ل � �� �� �   ز� �� ��ر ا�ا ��ت � � �� �۔ ��دہ ��ت � �ِ� ر� �� ، � �ط ا�ا

� �م د�ب و�� � �ر �� �۔

�
 ہ� �� ا�ل و �ا�۔ ا�� �� �� ��وں � رے � ا� �دى �ورت �� �  � � اُس �  �رو�رى ��ت اور ا�ر ا�م د� �� � اور و ا� ا�� ��� ادا

� �  اُس � � �� �� �  � � �� �ا��   � ر� اور ر�ن  �و��  � �رت � آ� �۔ 

� � ��ہ:

ا� ا� ا� � �رو�رى ��ہ

�� � ا��ں � �� � ا�� � ��۔ ر� � � �ا� � �دى و� �روں � �ں � ��ں ا�� اور ر�� � �ح � ��� �ل � آ�ز � � �ہ �ف � �� � �

روں اور ا�اد � � ر� � روا� اور ���  ��ز�د� ا�� � � � ��� �م ��ں � �ح � ا�� �� �۔ �و� -١٩ � و� � �رو�رى ��ت � ��س � ر� اور ادا � �رٹ ��� روں � ذر� ��ں � � �� وا� ��ت � �و� ادا� � � � /� � د� اور � ا� ��دہ � � �� � �� �� �ا۔ اس �ر�ل � �رو�رى ادا

 ء ���� � ا�ر ا� ��ت � ادا� � ��ت � � �� �� �ا۔ �� � ا�ا / �� � در�ا� � �ل �� � � � ا� � اور ا� اى � � � �� � ا�ا  ندر�ا�ں � ��ہ � ر� ��� � � �� � �ل �� � �د در�ا� ��ل ��۔ �را � ��ٹ ا � � ، � ��ہ � � �ل � آ�ى � �� � �� �� �

 ن� � � دى �� �۔ �، ��ٹ � اور �رڈ آف ڈا��ز � �رى � ا� در�ا�ں � �ٹ � �ورى ��ہ � �� � اور ا

 رر� �۔�  � ، �  � �و �ر� (ا� ا� ا� )  �� � ��  �� ا��ں � ز�ِ �ا�  ا�   �  ��ے   � ا�� ��� �ا��  � �� اور در� �  ��ا

ورك � ا�ر ان ا��ں � � � �ر�  �۔ِ
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ا� � ��  آڈٹ ر�رٹ  �� ا�وا�ر � �ف � ا�م ِ ��  ٣٠ �ن، ٢٠٢٠ � ��� ر�رٹ � �� � �۔

�
 ےد� �۔���� � د •  �ب وز� �ز ا� � �رڈ آف ڈا��ز اور آڈٹ � � ا

����  ے�) اور ا� �ٹ آف �� ا��� (آ� � اے) � ڈا��ز �� �� �� �� ���� � آف ��ن (آ� � ا� ا ز�دہ �  ڈا��ز ا� �ٹ آف �ر�ڈ ا�ؤ

� �� �۔

� �و�� �ر� � � (�ا�ٹ ) � (�) � �رڈ آف ڈا��ز � ا�ر ، ٣٠ �ن ، ٢٠١٩ � � �� وا� �ل � ڈا��ز � ر�رٹ � � � �ر� 

ذ� ��ں ، � � � � �ر� � ا�� � � � � �� �۔

ا� ا�!   � �و �ر� � ا��  �� ا��ں اور � � �� �� �� / ا�وا�ر � ز�ِ �ا� �م �� �۔ ��،  اس � �� � � � �� � �� � ��ر 

�رى و �رى �۔

• � ڈا��ز �� �� اور � ا��ا� �ر� �� ًا�� �رى ، �ر� ��ت اور ��� �رى �رى � � �ع اور ��ر �� �ر ر� �۔ �رڈ � �م � �ا�  �روں 

� ��م � � اور ا� � � ا� ا�  ا� � � �� ڈا��ز � � ورا� �� اور �رت � � ��ہ ��۔

رى �ر�ر� �� ذ� دا

• �رڈ � ا�ر دو � ڈا��ز � �ر � � � � � �ب �ن �ر ا��� اور �� ارم � �۔

• �ڈ آف �ر�ر� �ر� ٢٠١٩ � �ز� �ورت � � �� � � ، �� ارم � � �رڈ � �ر ��ن ڈا�� � �رى � � �۔

 ر�ڈل � � � ا� ار�د   ر�رو�ر� �ر �  ز�دہ � ز�دہ  �  �� � �۔ ا� � � � ا� ��ا �رى �ر�رى �� �  ا�  ��رز � �ط ا�� �دوں  اور ��ا

روں اور د� � دو�وں  ��ں  �  � �� �� �۔  � ا�اد، ادا

 ن� � �ں ، � اور � � �� د� وا� �و�ا�ں اور ��ں � �� ا�ا� �� �۔ ا� ا� ا�� �ر � ا�د � �وغ  ا� ا� ا� ��ے � �ا�ت �� �ا

 م�� �۔  ر� ا�ا  م� ��ہ �� � ، � � ��ں ، ر� و رواج اور ا�اد اور �و�ں � ا�ا د� � �� �� � اور �م ر�ں � ا�� و�ر اور �ق � ا�ا

�رڈ آف ڈا��ز اور آڈٹ �:

• �ب � ا�� �ن آڈٹ � � � � � �۔

��� �� �را � � ا� �  اس �و� � ��  �ر اور  �ں � �ك  �م � � رى � اور �رى �   � � � �م  � � � � �� � ر�� �رى � � � اور �ى ذ� دا

��۔

 ر� � ��ل �� � � �م �۔   ر�� � ذ� دا رى (CSR) � �وغ  د� � � ا�ا�ت  اور �� � ��ر ��  �� اور ��ا �ا، � ا� �ر�ر� �� ذ� دا

ڈا��ز �  �� اور  �رف

��
ڈا���ز � �  � �� � � 
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• � ا��ا� ��� ر�ر� �ر(آ� ا� آر ا�) ، ��ن � �ر� � �� ��،  ��� ا� � �رى �  � � � �  �ف �� � �� و� �ن � �� �۔

• �رڈ  �ر�  � ��دہ �رى �� � � �۔

��ر� ا� ا�  � ��ن (SECP)اور �ڈ �ا� �ر�ر� �ر�  � �ر�ر� اور ��� ������ ڈا��ز �ت /�� � ��  �� �� � �  درج ذ�   �ں �  

ر�ر�  � �� ورك � �۔

��ن � �� �رڈ �

� � ڈا��:

��� � � � د� � � � � اور �و� ا�س � ا�� ا�ا�ت � � � � � � ا�س � ��ن � ��������  ن، �رڈ � �م �رڈ � � ا�م �ا� �  ا� �ل � دورا

�� ا�د � � �۔

��� رى � � � ��������  ر�۔ �و� � � �� اور ذ� دا � � � � ا� �� � � � � دا د ڈا��ز  �ف اور �ف �ر�  ��، � ا�� ڈا��ز اور آزا

�� اور � � ��� � �� �� � � اور �رت � �� اور د� �از�ت � ا�� � �� �۔ �� � � �ر� � � � ا�� ڈا�� � � 

 ن� �ا� �دہ ��ت � �ض �� �رى � و�ل � �� �۔ رے � �ن ا�� ڈا�� � ا� � ا دو�ے ادا

�� � � ڈا�� �ر� � � � ��د � �۔

�� ر� وا�ں � ��:

رہ �� / �ر�ر� اور ���  ر�ر� � ڈ��  ادا

���  ہ� �ر � ا� �وں �� ر� �، � � آ�� � �� ، � � اور ا��  � �� � �۔�������� �  � �ف � �ر � �� � ، و • ��� ا� � � �ر� 

• �ر� � �� �ر �  �� �� � ��۔

اس  ر�رٹ � ا� ا� � � ٣٠ �ن ، ٢٠٢٠ � �ر� � �� ��� � �� اور ا�� ��ت �� �۔

�
• ��� ا� � �رى � �� ا�ؤ�  ��ں � �� � �� �۔  ��ں  � �  � �� اور � و� � �د � �� �� �۔�

• ا�رو� ا�م � �ٔ� �� � �� ا� � �� �۔ اس �ن � ا�رو� ا�ب / آڈٹ  و د� ذرا� � � � ��ہ � �� �۔

• �ر�ر� �ر� � �� �� �ر � � � � ��  �� � �ا �  � � � �� �ہ � (�ڈ آف �ر�ر� �ر�)  ر�� ٢٠١٩ � �� ،  �ا� اُس 

� � �  ا�  �ا� �ر�ر� �ر� � �� � �۔

• ٣٠ �ن ٢٠٢٠ � � � � � �� �، ڈ��، �� اور د� �ر� و�ہ �� ادا � � �ا� � � ر�رٹ � �ا� � � �۔
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�رڈ � �

١.  �ر� ذ� � �� ڈا��ز � � �اد � �۔

• �د:  ٥

• �رت:  ١

٢.  � ز�ے � � �ا� �روں � �اد �ر� ذ� �۔

د ڈا��:  ٢ •  آزا

• � ا�� ڈا��:  ٢

• ا�� ڈا��:  ١

٣٠ �ن ٢٠٢٠ � � � �رڈ آف ڈا��ز � � �ر� ذ� �۔

�ب � � ا�ر ٥ ٤ ١

N/A N/A - � ارم ��

��ى �ا� �رڈ �

N/A N/A ب �ن  �را��� ٢�

• �ا� ڈا��:  ١

ڈا��ز � �م �رڈ � ڈا��ز آڈٹ � ا� آر �

 � � ا�س �ا۔ � ڈا�� � ��ى � درج ذ� �:  ن، �رڈ � �� ا�س ، آڈٹ � � �ر ا�س اور ا� �� ر�رس �ل � دورا

�ب وز� �ز ا� ٢ ١ ١

N/A N/A ب � � ا�ا� ٥�

N/A ب �ا�� �ن ٥ ٣�

� ر� ا� ٥ ٤  ١
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� �������� � �� روں اور ا� � آف ��ن � �ں �  �� �� �����  ر�ر�  �، ��� ادا ر�ا �  � ��ن ، ��ر� ا� ا  ر� �  �  �ون اور �د   اُ�   (SECP)�رڈ  � �ا

 ہ�ر� � �ز  � �ں � ا� �رو�ر اور د� ��ت � �رى  ر�� �، �� ��ن �  �ں � � �و �ر� � �� � ا� �ون  �، اس � �و

�رى ر� ۔ 

����
  ر  ہدو�رہ � آڈ�  �ا� �� �ل ا�م  ٣٠ �ن، ٢٠٢١ � � ا� آپ � � �� ، � �   ر�ا  وا�ا� ا� �، �ر�ڈ ا�ؤ� ، اس ا� � � و ��دہ آڈ�  �ز � ڈى ا

�ر�  � � �رى � �وط �۔

� ا�� آ� ڈا��

�ا�: �ر� ٢٣ �،٢٠٢٠

آ� � ،  �رڈ �ر� �  �ز�  � �� �و�م، � � اور ا� �� � �ا�  � � � و� � � � �� �� �� �� �۔

� � ا�ا�  � ر� ا�

ا�ر �ِ

آڈ�ز:
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Notice of Annual Review Meeting 

  Title of Bank Account 

  International Bank Account number (IBAN) 

REQUEST TO CERTIFICATE HOLDERS

Notice is hereby given that the Annual Review Meeting of certificate-holders of Habib Metro Modaraba  
will be held on October 24, 2020 at 3.30 p.m. at Institute of Cost and Management Accountants of 
Pakistan (ICMAP) Building, ST-18/C Block-6, Gulshan-e-Iqbal, Karachi, to review the performance of 
the Modaraba for the year ended June 30, 2020. 

  Mobile/Landline no. 

By order of the Board

 (i) Certificate holder’s details 

  Folio # / CDS Account No.(s) 

The certificate holders whose names appear in the register of certificate holders of HMM as on 
October 20, 2020 will be eligible to attend the Annual Review Meeting.

 

  Bank’s Name 

Ÿ In accordance with the provisions of section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Companies 
(Distribution of Dividend) Regulations, 2017, it is mandatory for a listed company to pay cash 
dividend to its certificate holder only through electronic mode directly into the bank account 
designated by the entitled certificate holder. Therefore, certificate holders are requested to fill in 
“Electronic Credit Mandate Form” as reproduced below and send it duly signed along with a copy 
of valid CNIC/NTN to their respective CDC participant / CDC Investor account services.

  Name of the certificate holder (s) 

Officiating Company Secretary      Karachi: October 02, 2020

  Branch’s name and address 

It is stated that the above-mentioned information is correct and in case of any change herein I will 
immediately intimate the Share Registrar accordingly. 

 (ii) Certificate holder’s Bank detail 

Tehsin Abbas

Ÿ The Individual Certificate Holders who have not yet submitted photocopy of their valid 
Computerized National Identity  Card (CNIC) to the Modaraba / Share Registrar, are once again 
reminded to send the same at the earliest directly to Company’s Share Registrar, M/s CDC Share 
Registrar Services Limited. In case of non-receipt of the copy of a valid CNIC, the Modaraba would 
be constrained under section 243 (3) of the Companies Act, 2017 to withhold dividend of such 
certificate holders.

  CNIC NO. (copy attached) 
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Directors‘ Profile

Syed Rasheed Akhtar – Chairman Non-Executive Independent Director

Syed Rasheed Akhtar has rich experience in the banking field. His vast banking career spans over 36 
years. He possesses masters in statistics degree from University of Karachi. He started his banking 
career from Habib Bank Limited in the year 1974 and carried diversified experience on very senior 
positions. He has been associated with Bank Indosuez, Habib Bank AG Zurich, HBZ Bank Limited, 
South Africa. He also headed an independent Islamic Banking Division of HBZ Bank Limited, South 
Africa from 2006-2010. He successfully completed Certificate on Islamic Banking arranged by 
N.I.B.A.F. State Bank of Pakistan. He has also completed Certification of Director Training Program 
conducted by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

Muhammad Shoaib Ibrahim – Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Saeed Uddin Khan has extensive 33 years banking experience in Conventional as well as Islamic. 
He did his MBA from IBA, Karachi. He also holds Diploma in Banking (DAIBP) and PGD as well as 
NIBAF, SBP Certification in Islamic banking, besides short as well as extensive training within and 
outside Pakistan. He has a rich knowledge of retail banking, product and brand development, 
corporate financing, risk management, asset recovery, budgeting, MIS etc. He served HBL in different 
areas and at senior positions including inter alia CEO of HBL Mudaraba, Head, Islamic Banking, Head, 
Budgeting & MIS, Head, SME Business etc.  Lastly he set up Islamic banking business and launched a 
new brand by the name of Sa’adat in Sindh Bank, which he left in early 2018. 

Usman Nurul Abedin - Non Executive Director

Muhammad Shoaib, is associated with FHM since the inception of modaraba. His extensive working 
experience in Non-Banking Islamic Financial institutions makes him senior most person with such rich 
experience of Islamic Finance in Pakistan. This intense exposure gave him the insight into the financial 
and technical aspects of fund management in Islamic way. He has done Master's in Business 
Administration (MBA) in Banking and Finance from Institute of Business Administration (IBA). He has 
completed Post Graduate Diploma (PGD) in Islamic Banking and Finance from Centre of Islamic 
Economics (Darul Ulum), Karachi, Pakistan. He has also completed Certification of Director Training 
Program conducted by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan. On number of occasions he 
remained as an Executive Member of Modaraba Association of Pakistan. 

Mr. Usman Nurul Abedin has graduated from University of Karachi he possesses about of 44 years of 
diversified experience in the field of banking and finance. He has a vast experience in banking 
particularly in treasury operations international branch banking. He served Habib Metropolitan Bank 
for about 32 years at senior management positions and also well versed with risk of credit 
management policy making and administration. Before joining Habib Metropolitan Bank he was 
associated with Bank of Credit & commerce international (BCCI) for about 12 years and served as 
Manager international Operations / Overseas Banking / Credit and Marketing.

Mohammad Shams Izhar - Non Executive Director

Saeed Uddin Khan- Non Executive Independent Director

Mr. Mohammad Shams Izhar is an MBA from Institute of Business Administration (IBA), Karachi backed 
with a degree in Industrial Technology. He has over 36 years’ experience in banking with specialization 
in Corporate Governance and Risk Management overseeing credit risk, operation risk, market & 
liquidity  risk, information security, business continuity and internal control . He also contributed 
towards improvement of the country’s banking industry’s standard as a member of Pakistan Banks 
Association’s sub-committee and SBP working group. He is also a Fellow Institute of Bankers Pakistan 
and Certified Director by Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance (PICG)."
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Dr. Irum Saba – Non Executive Director

Dr. Irum Saba is Assistant Professor in the Department of Finance and program Director of MS Islamic 
Banking and Finance at IBA-Karachi Pakistan, and currently she is on deputation from State Bank of 
Pakistan to IBA-Karachi. She having experience of more than 15 years as progressive regulatory, 
research, training and teaching experience with organizations of international repute. She is well 
known personality within Islamic Finance industry in Pakistan and globally as well.



Habib Metro Modaraba

22

Listing on Stock Exchange 

Payment of Dividend Electronically (E-mandate)

For assistance, Certificate holders may contact either the Registered Office or Share Registrar Office:

Contact Person: Contact Person:

Mr. Mohsin Rajab Ali Senior Vice President

Book Closure Dates 

Investor Service Centre

CDC Share Registrar Services Limited

Registrar Office: Mr. Rashid K. Siddiqui

HMM share department is operated by Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Share 
registrar department. It also functions as an Investor Service Centre and has been servicing nearly 1,188 
Certificate holders. The Investor Service Centre is managed by a well-experienced team of 
professionals and is equipped with the necessary infrastructure in terms of computer facilities and 
comprehensive set of systems and procedures for conducting the Registration function. The team is 
headed by Mr. Mohsin Rajab Ali at registered office, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - 
Share registrar department and Mr. Rashid K. Siddiqui, Senior Vice President at HMM. 

HMM share department has online connectivity with Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 
- Operation department. The share department undertakes activities Certificate Transfer and 
Transmission, issue of duplicate / revalidated dividend warrant, issue of duplicate / replaced share 
Certificates, change of address and other related matters.

The Board of Directors of the Management Company has approved cash dividend of 7% (Re. 0.70 per 
Modaraba Certificate of Rs. 10/- each) for the financial year ended 30th June, 2020.

Dividend Announcement

Modaraba Certificates of Habib Metro Modaraba (HMM) is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX).

The Certificate Transfer Book of the Modaraba will remain close from 21-10-20 to 31-10-20 (both days 
are inclusive).

Pursuant to the provisions of section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Companies (Distribution of 
Dividend) Regulations, 2017, the dividend will be paid, to those certificate holders whose name appear 
in the Register of Member of the Modaraba after entertaining all requests for transfer of certificate 
lodge with the Modaraba before the book closure date, through electronic mode directly into the bank 
account designated by the entitled certificate holder.

Manager Share Registrar Habib Metro Modaraba

Certificate Holders Information

Registered Office:
3rd Floor, Al Manzoor Building
Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Karachi
Tel : 021-32635949-51
Fax : 021-32627373
Web www.habibmetromodaraba.com
Email : hmm@habibmetromodaraba.com

CDC Share Registrar Services Limited
Share Registrar Department
CDC House, 99-B, Block “B”,
S.M.C.H.S
Main Shahrah-e-Faisal,
Karachi,
Pakistan. Tel: 111-111-500
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Currently Section 150 of the income Tax Ordinance, 2001 prescribed following tax rates for deduction 
of withholding tax on the amount of dividend paid by the modarabas, unless the Certificate Holder's 
income is tax-exempted:

The status of deduction of withholding tax will be determined as per Active Taxpayer List (ATL)” 
available on FBR website.

1.  Rate of tax deduction for filer of income tax return.    25%

Further, in the light of clarification from Federal Board of Revenue, all the shareholders who intend to 
seek exemption from withholding of taxes on payment of dividend under clause 47B of Part – IV of 
the Second Schedule of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, are requested to provide the valid 
Exemption Certificate under section 159(1) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 duly issued by the 
concerned Commissioner of Inland Revenue in order to claim the said exemption.

2.  Rate of tax deduction for non-filer of income tax return.    50%

Withholding of Tax & Zakat on Dividend

Zakat is also deductible at source from the dividend at the rate of 2.5% of face value of the share, 
other than the corporate holders or the individuals who provide the undertaking for non-deduction of 
Zakat.
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Categories of Certificate Holders

Categories of Certificate Holders Certificate Holders Certificate Held Percentage%

Certificate holders holding 5% or more Certificate Held Percentage%

As of June 30, 2020

Directors and their spouse(s) and minor children - - -

Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited 1 18,000,000 60.00
Habib Metropolitan Modaraba Management Company (Pvt.) Ltd 1 3,000,000 10.00

Executives - - -

Public Sector Companies and Corporations - - -

Banks, development ‹ nance institutions, non-banking ‹ nance companies, 
insurance companies, takaful, modarabas and pension funds 1 500 0.00

Mutual Funds - - -

General Public
a. Local 1,112 3,271,788 10.91
b. Foreign 1 2,471 0.01

Foreign Companies - - -
Others 6 5,725,241 19.08

Totals 1,122 30,000,000 100

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited 18,000,000 60
Habib Management (Private) Limited 5,722,741 19.08
Habib Metropolitan Modaraba Management Company (Pvt.) Ltd 3,000,000 10
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PATTERN OF CERTIFICATE HOLDING REPORT 
As of June 30, 2020

 Certificate holders    Held 

 29 1 to 100 158

 214 501 to 1000 213,892

 Number of   Certificate Holdings  Total Certificate 

 4 15001 to 20000 70,359

 618 101 to 500 307,231

 14 5001 to 10000 104,336

 209 1001 to 5000 490,119

 9 10001 to 15000 116,580

 7 20001 to 25000 169,748

 1 115001 to 120000 120,000

 2 25001 to 30000 55,148

 2 30001 to 35000 65,567

 1 160001 to 165000 160,500

 1 195001 to 200000 199,000

 1 95001 to 100000 100,000

 

 1 17995001 to 18000000 18,000,000

 1 40001 to 45000 43,500

 3 45001 to 50000 146,742

 1 340001 to 345000 343,000

 1 35001 to 40000 36,879

 1 2995001 to 3000000 3,000,000

 1 5720001 to 5725000 5,722,741

 1122     30,000,000 

 1 530001 to 535000 534,500
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Statement of Compliance with Code of Corporate Governance 
of Habib Metro Modaraba for the year ended June 30, 2020

The Modaraba Management Company (hereafter referred to as the Company) has complied with the 
requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are six as per the following:

 Non-Executive Director Dr. Irum Saba

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant 
policies of the company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the 
significant policies along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the company;

9. All directors of the Company are compliant with the requirement of the Regulation related to 
Directors’ Training Program. The Board ensures arrangement of orientation course for its 
directors to apprise them of their duties and responsibilities at the beginning of their term. No 
training session for directors was held during the year.

10. The board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, 
including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with 
relevant requirements of the Regulations.

8. The boards of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of 
directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

4. The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have 
been taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and 
procedures.

2. The composition of board is as follows:            

     Executive Director Mr. Muhammad Shoaib Ibrahim

       Male 5

 Non-Executive Independent Director Mr. S eed Uddin Khan

  Chairman (Non-Executive Independent Director) Mr. Syed Rasheed Akhtar

 Non-Executive Director Mr. Mohammad Shams Izhar

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than Seven 
listed companies, including this company;

7. The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director 
elected by the board for this purpose. The board has complied with the requirements of Act and 
the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of 
board.

 Non-Executive Director Mr. Usman Nurul Abedin

6. All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have 
been taken by board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and 
these Regulations.

 Female 1
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 Member Mr. Saeed Uddin Khan

 

18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27,32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have 
been complied with; and

19. Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 
36 are below (if applicable):

HR and Remuneration Committee 

 Chairman Mr. Syed Rasheed Akhtar

 Member Mr. Syed Rasheed Akhtar

12. The board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

Audit Committee 

11. CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the board.

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised 
to the committee for compliance.

 Member Mr. Mohammad Shams Izhar

 Member Mr. Mohammad Shams Izhar

14. The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committee were as per following:

15. The board has set up an effective internal audit function containing individuals who are suitably 
qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of 
the Company.

 Chairman  Mr. Saeed Uddin Khan

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide 
other services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory 
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this 
regard.

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory 
rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners 
are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of 
ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the 
partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and 
non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal 
audit, company secretary or director of the company;
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 Non-Mandatory Requirement Reg. No. Explanation 

        24 We are in searching 
of     suitable candidate 
and soon this 
position will be filled

Muhammad Shoaib Ibrahim  Syed Rasheed Akhtar

Karachi:  September 23, 2020

Chief Executive Officer Chairman

The positions of both Chief Financial Officer and 
Company Secretary has been held by the same person.  



29

Annual Report 2019-20

As a part of our audit of the financial statements, we are required to obtain an understanding of the 
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit 
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal 
control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal 
controls, the Modaraba’s corporate governance procedures and risks. 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement 
of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Modaraba Management Company's compliance, in all 
material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Modaraba 
for the year ended June 30, 2020.

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of 
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of 
Habib Metropolitan Modaraba Management Company (Private) Limited (the Modaraba Management 
Company) for and on behalf of Habib Metro Modaraba (the Modaraba) for the year ended June 30, 
2020 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations. 

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the 
Modaraba Management Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of 
Compliance reflects the status of the Modaraba’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations 
and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the 
Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Modaraba’s personnel and review of 
various documents prepared by the Modaraba Management Company to comply with the 
Regulations. 

The Regulations require the Modaraba Management Company to place before the Audit Committee, 
and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their 
review and approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance 
of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of 
Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. 

KARACHI BDO Ebrahim  & Co. 

 Engagement Partner: Zulfikar Ali Causer
DATED: SEPTEMBER 23, 2020  CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditor‘s Review Report to the Certificate Holders of Habib 
Metro Modaraba on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed 
Companies (Code Of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 
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Shariah Advisor's Profile

 4.  Mufti Tahir Mehmood

 1.  Mufti Ibrahim Essa

 3.  Mufti Uzair Tariq Bilwani

 6.  Dr. Mufti Adnan Aziz

Alhamd Shariah Advisery Services (ASAS) is a Shariah Advisory company providing Shariah Advisory 
services, training and product development to Islamic Banks, Modarabas, Islamic Mutual Funds, Takaful 
companies etc. 

The certificate of Incorporation was issued from SECP on March 05, 2018. ASAS is certified Shariah 
Advisory Company of SECP and the registration number in SECP is SECP/IFD/SA/046 dated May 07, 
2019.

 2.  Mufti Ubid ur Rahman

 5.  Mufti Hassain Ahmad

The following Shariah Scholars are associated with ASAS and have the experience and affiliation for 
the advisory of the renowned institution in the country mostly in the financial sector: 
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NIL

ii.  the agreement(s) entered into by HMM are Shari’ah Compliant and the financing agreement(s) 
have been executed on the approved formats and all the related conditions have been met;

iii. to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the business 
transactions undertaken by HMM and all other matters incidental thereto are in conformity with 
the Shari’ah requirements;

We have conducted the Shari’ah review of Habib Metro Modaraba (HMM) managed by Habib 
Metropolitan Modaraba Management Company (Pvt.) Limited for the financial year ended on June 30, 
2020 in accordance with the requirements of the Shari’ah Compliance and Shari’ah Audit Mechanism 
for Modarabas and in our opinion:

iv.  Charity account was reviewed and found in line with the direction of rules and regulations.

Based on the extensive reviews of sample cases of Residual Value car financing, related 
documentation, processes, and management’s representation made in this regard, it is our candid 
opinion that, the affairs, activities and transactions,performed by the Modaraba during the year are in 
compliance with the rules & principles of Shari’ah and in light of the guidelines issued by the Registrar 
Modaraba, Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

i.  the mechanism adopted by HMM has strengthened the Shari’ah compliance, in letter and spirit 
and the systems, procedures and policies adopted by HMM are in line with the Shari’ah 
principles;

NIL

Conclusion:

May Allah bless HMM with the best Tawfeeq to accomplish His cherished tasks, all good deeds are 
from Allah and weaknesses are from our side that needs to be forgiven.

Observations:

Recommendations:

Shariah Advisor's Review Report

Mufti Muhammad Ibrahim Essa
For and on behalf of
Alhamd Shariah Advisory Services Private Limited

Dated: July 20, 2020

Mufti Uzair Bilwani
For and on behalf of
Alhamd Shariah Advisory Services Private Limited



Habib Metro Modaraba

32

Auditors‘ Report to the Certificate Holders

        Engagement Partner: Zulfikar Ali Causer

These financial statements are the Modaraba Company's [Habib Metropolitan Modaraba Management 
Company (Private) Limited] responsibility who is also responsible to establish and maintain a system 
of internal control, and prepare and present the above said statements in conformity with the 
approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of the Modaraba 
Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 (XXXI of 1980), and the Modaraba 
Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements 
based on our audit.

We have audited the annexed balance sheet of HABIB METRO MODARABA (“the Modaraba”) as at 
June 30, 2020 and the related profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive income, cash flow 
statement and statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof 
(hereinafter referred to as the financial statements), for the year ended June 30, 2020 and we state 
that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and 
belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

b) in our opinion:

ii) the expenditure incurred during the period was for the purpose of the Modaraba 's business; 
and

DATED: September 23, 2020     BDO Ebrahim & Co.
        Chartered Accountants

KARACHI

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial statements are free of any material misstatement. An audit includes examining on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting policies and significant estimates made by the Modaraba Company, 
as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion and, after due verification, we report that: 

i) the balance sheet and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have been 
drawn up in conformity with the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation And Control) 
Ordinance, 1980 (XXXI of 1980) and the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981, and 
are in agreement with the books of account and are further in agreement with accounting 
policies consistently applied;

c) in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the balance sheet, profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive income, cash flow 
statement and statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof 
conform with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information 
required by the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 
(XXXI of 1980), and the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981, in the manner so required 
and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Modaraba's affairs as at June 30, 2020 
and of the profit, its comprehensive income, its cash flows and changes in equity for the period 
then ended; and

d) zakat decuctible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was 
deducted by the Modaraba and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 
of that Ordinance.

a) in our opinion proper books of account have been kept by the Modaraba Company in respect of 
the Modaraba as required by the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) 
Ordinance, 1980 (XXXI of 1980), and the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981;

iii) the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the period 
were in accordance with the objects, terms and conditions of the Modaraba;
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 2020 2019

Note Rupees Rupees
ASSETS

NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property and equipment 5 3,323,134 4,341,742
Intangible assets 6 67,002 181,856
Vehicles available for diminishing musharaka financing 7 - 28,889,899
Diminishing musharaka financing 8 130,453,082 131,053,719
Preliminary expenses and floatation costs 9 5,250,688 7,881,758

139,093,906 172,348,974
CURRENT ASSETS

Short term investment 10 100,000,000 70,000,000
Current portion of diminishing musharaka financing 8 64,758,281 36,963,869
Short term prepayments and other receivables 11 1,251,172 2,122,049
Accrued profit 12 760,667 1,010,497
Taxation - net 13 5,530,605 4,697,122
Cash and cash equivalent
Cash and bank balances

14 34,522,609 32,275,791
206,823,334 147,069,328

TOTAL ASSETS 345,917,240 319,418,302

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
CERTIFICATE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorized capital
30,000,000 modaraba certificates of Rs. 10/- each 300,000,000 300,000,000

Issued, subscribed and paid-up certificate capital 15 300,000,000 300,000,000
Statutory reserve 16 8,624,156 3,021,377
Unappropriated profit 23,246,627 9,085,511

331,870,783 312,106,888
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Creditors, accrued and other liabilities 17 14,024,481 7,304,847
Dividend payable 21,976 6,567

14,046,457 7,311,414
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 345,917,240 319,418,302

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 18

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Balance Sheet 
As at June 30, 2020

DIRECTOR                     DIRECTOR                     CHIEF EXECUTIVE                    CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

For Habib Metropolitan Modaraba Management Company (Private) Limited

(Modaraba Management Company) 
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2020  2019

Note  Rupees  Rupees 
INCOME

Profit on Islamic certificates 1,697 ,260 3,275,082
Income from diminishing musharaka financing 32,661,276 13,757,843
Profit on Islamic Term Deposit Receipts (TDR) 2,830,619 1,926,362
Profit on Modaraba's deposit accounts 8,693,275 1,393,474
Other finance income 19 4,321,600 8,852,600
Other income 510,456 188,241

50,714,486 29,393,602
EXPENSES

Amortization of preliminary expenses and floatation costs 9 2,631,070 2,614,881
Administrative expenses 20 15,708,768 15,273,070
Financial charges 21 147 ,357 184,415

18,487,195 18,072,366

32,227,291 11,321,236

Sales taxs  on management company’s remuneration 22
22 3,222,729

418,955
-
-

Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 17.1 571,712 226,425
Profit before taxation 28,013,895 11,094,811
Taxation 23 - -
Net profit for the year 28,013,895 11,094,811

Earnings per certificate - basic and diluted 24 0.93 0.37

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Profit And Loss Account           
For the year ended June 30, 2020

DIRECTOR                     DIRECTOR                     CHIEF EXECUTIVE                    CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

For Habib Metropolitan Modaraba Management Company (Private) Limited

(Modaraba Management Company) 

Modaraba management company's remuneration
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2020  2019

 Rupees  Rupees 

Net profit for the year 28,013,895 11,094,811

Other comprehensive income - -

Total comprehensive income for the year 28,013,895 11,094,811

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Statement Of Comprehensive Income 
For the year ended June 30, 2020

DIRECTOR                     DIRECTOR                     CHIEF EXECUTIVE                    CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

For Habib Metropolitan Modaraba Management Company (Private) Limited

(Modaraba Management Company) 
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2020  2019

Note  Rupees  Rupees 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash used in operations 31         (33,960,647)         (33,708,088)
Advances                          -           190,321,049 
Vehicle available for diminishing musharaka financing           28,889,899          (28,889,899)
Diminishing musharaka financing                600,637        (122,611,428)
Income tax paid - net               (833,483)           (3,627,124)
Financial charges paid               (147,357)              (184,415)

Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities            (5,450,951)            1,300,095 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Addition to property and equipment               (199,900)              (641,794)
Investment-net          (30,000,000)         (20,000,000)
Profit on Islamic certificates             1,974,657             4,701,692 
Income received on diminishing musharaka financing           32,661,276           13,757,843 
Profit on Islamic Term Deposit Receipts (TDR)             3,177,833             1,244,398 
Profit received on Modaraba's deposits accounts             8,318,494             1,381,533 

Net cash generated from investing activities           15,932,360                443,672 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid (8,234,591) (2,993,433)

Net cash used in financing activities (8,234,591) (2,993,433)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the year             2,246,818            (1,249,666)
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the year 32,275,791 33,525,457
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year 14          34,522,609           32,275,791 

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended June 30, 2020

DIRECTOR                     DIRECTOR                     CHIEF EXECUTIVE                    CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

For Habib Metropolitan Modaraba Management Company (Private) Limited

(Modaraba Management Company) 
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Balance as on July 1, 2018 304,012,077

Transaction with the owners

Profit distribution for the period ended June 

30, 2018 @ Rs 0.1 per certificate (3,000,000) (3,000,000)

Profit for the year 11,094,811

Other comprehensive income -

Total comprehensive income for the year 11,094,811

Transfer to statutory reserve -

Balance as at June 30, 2019 312,106,888

Transaction with the owners

Profit distribution for the year ended June 

30, 2019 @ Rs 0.275 per certificate (8,250,000)

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income -

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transfer to statutory reserve -

Balance as at June 30, 2020

300,000,000

-

-

-

-

300,000,000

-

-

-

-

300,000,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

802,415

2,218,962

3,021,377

8,624,156

3,209,662

11,094,811

-

11,094,811

(2,218,962)

9,085,511

(8,250,000)

28,013,895

-

28,013,895 28,013,895

(5,602,779)

23,246,627 331,870,783

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For Habib Metropolitan Modaraba Management Company (Private) Limited

(Modaraba Management Company) 

Issued, 

subscribed and 

paid-up 

certificate capital

Total
Unappropriated 

profit

*Statutory 

reserve

*Statutory reserve represents profit set a side to comply with the Prudential Regulation for Modarabas issued by 

Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

----------------------------------Rupees----------------------------------

Statement Of Changes In Equity
For the year ended June 30, 2020

DIRECTOR                     DIRECTOR                     CHIEF EXECUTIVE                    CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

5,602,779

28,013,895



Habib Metro Modaraba

38

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2020

 These financial statements have been prepared following basis of accounting except for cash flow 
information.

 These financial statements have been presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the functional and 
presentation currency of the Modaraba.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

 These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the measurement at 
fair value of certain financial instruments in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9 "Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement", wherever applicable. 

 "Permissible Islamic financial products including Musharaka have been used by the Modaraba, in line with 
similar industry practices. The accounting and presentation of the same are in line with the substance of the 
transaction and are limited to the extent of actual amount of facility utilized and mutually agreed profit 
thereon. 

2.2 Basis of measurement

1 NATURE AND STATUS OF BUSINESS

 The Modaraba is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The Modaraba is engaged in Residual Value 
car financing model on diminishing musharika basis, providing financing for solar power equipments and 
other related business.

2.1 Statement of compliance

 As at the balance sheet date, sixty percent certificates are held by Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited (the 
Holding Company).

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards 
as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of: 

 - International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued  by the International Accounting 
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

 - Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFASs) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Pakistan as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

 - Provision of and directives issued under Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) 
Ordinance, 1980, the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981, Prudential Regulation for 
Modaraba and directives issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)

 Wherever provision of and directives issued under the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and 
Control) Ordinance, 1980, Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981, Prudential Regulation for 
Modaraba, IFASs and directives issued by the SECP differ from the IFRS Standards, the requirements of the 
Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980, Modaraba Companies and 
Modaraba Rules, 1981, Prudential Regulation for Modaraba, IFASs or directives issued by the SECP under the 
Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 have been followed.

 Habib Metro Modaraba (the Modaraba) is a multipurpose, perpetual modaraba floated under the Modaraba 
Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 and the Rules framed thereunder and is 
managed by  Habib Metropolitan Modaraba Management Company (Private) Limited (the Modaraba 
Management Company). After receiving certificate of minimum subscription, the Modaraba commenced its 
business operations with effect from October 06, 2017. The address of registered office is 3rd Floor, Al-
Manzoor Building, Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Karachi.
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2.4 Significant accounting estimates and judgments

3 NEW STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED ACCOUNTING 
STANDARDS

 The Modaraba reviews its overdue lease financing installments and diminishing musharka at each reporting 
date to assess whether provision should be recorded in the profit and loss account, in addition to the 
mandatory provisions required in accordance with the Prudential Regulations issued by the Securities and 
Exchange Commission of Pakistan. In particular, judgment by management is required in the estimation of 
the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the level of provision required. Such estimates 
are based on assumptions regarding a number of factors and actual results may differ, resulting in future 
changes to the provisions.

 Estimates with respect to residual values and depreciable lives and pattern of flow of economic benefits are 
based on the analysis by the management of the Modaraba. Further, the Modaraba reviews the value of the 
assets for possible impairment on an annual basis and any change in the estimates in the future might affect 
the carrying amount of respective item of property and equipment, with a corresponding effect on the 
depreciation charge and impairment. 

 Provisions against non performing financing (Suspense income)

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires the use 
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process 
of applying the Modaraba's accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are 
based on historic experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to 
be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in 
which the estimate is revised and in any future period effected. In the process of applying the Modaraba's 
accounting policies, management has made the following estimates and judgments which are significant to 
the financial statements: 

3.1 Standards / amendments that are effective in current year and are relevant to the Modaraba

 The Modaraba has adopted the standards / amendments to the following approved accounting standards 
as applicable in Pakistan which became effective during the year from the dates mentioned below against 
the respective standard:

 Useful lives, pattern of flow of economic benefits and impairment 

For the year ended June 30, 2020

IFRS 9 January 01, 2019

IFRS 16 Leases - Original issue July 01, 2018

Financial Instruments - amendments regarding prepayment features with 
negative compensation and modifications of financial liabilities

Effective date 

(annual periods 

beginning on or 

after)

 Other than the amendments to standards mentioned above, there are certain annual improvements made to 
IFRS that became effective during the year:

Annual improvements to IFRSs (2015 œ 2017) Cycle:

IFRS 3 Business Combinations January 01, 2019

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements January 01, 2019

IAS 12 Income Taxes January 01, 2019

IAS 23 Borrowing Costs January 01, 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements 
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Effective date 

(annual periods 

beginning on or 

after)

 The following amendments to the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan that are 
effective in current year and not relevant to the Modaraba:

3.2 Standards / amendments that are effective in current year and not relevant to the Modaraba

For the year ended June 30, 2020

IFRS 8 January 01, 2019

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts - Original issue July 01, 2019

IAS 19 January 01, 2019

IAS 28 January 01, 2019

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments January 01, 2019

Employee benefits - Amendments regarding plan 
amendments, curtailments or settlements

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Amendments 
regarding long-term interests in associates and joint ventures

Operating Segments - Amendments regarding prepayment 
features with negative compensation and modifications of 
financial liabilities

 Amendments to IFRS 2, IFRS 3, IFRS 6, IFRS 14, IAS 1, IAS 8, IAS 34, IAS 37, IAS 38,IFRIC 12, IFRIC 19, IFRIC 
20, IFRIC 22, and SIC-32 to update these pronouncements with regard to references to and quotes from the 
framework or to indicate where they refer to different version of the Conceptual Framework.

3.3 Amendments not yet effective

 The following amendments to the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan would be 
effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard:

January 01, 2020

IFRS 3 January 01, 2020

IFRS 3 January 01, 2022

IFRS 4 January 01, 2023

Business Combinations - amendments to clarify the 
definition of a business

Business Combinations - amendments updating a reference 
to the Conceptual Framework

Insurance Contracts - Amendments regarding the expiry 
date of the deferral approach

IFRS 7

January 01, 2020

IFRS 9

January 01, 2020

IFRS 9

January 01, 2023

Financial Instruments - Amendments regarding the interaction 
of IFRS 4 and IFRS 9

Financial Instruments - Amendments regarding pre-
replacement issues in the context of the IBOR reform

Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Amendments regarding pre-
replacement issues in the context of the IBOR reform

Effective date 

(annual periods 

beginning on or 

after)

Notes to the Financial Statements 
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IFRS 17

January 01, 2023

IAS 1

January 01, 2020

IAS 1

January 01, 2022

IAS 8 

January 01, 2020

IAS 16

IAS 37

January 01, 2022

IAS 39

January 01, 2020

January 01, 2022

Insurance Contracts - Amendments to address concerns and 
implementation challenges that were identified after IFRS 17 
was published

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets - 
Amendments regarding the costs to include when assessing 
whether a contract is onerous

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement - 
Amendments regarding pre-replacement issues in the 
context of the IBOR reform

The annual improvements to IFRSs that are effective from the dates mentioned below against respectives
tandards:

Presentation of Financial Statements - amendments regarding 
the definition of materiality

Presentation of Financial Statements - Amendments regarding 
the classification of liabilities

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and 
Errors - amendments regarding the definition of materiality

Property, Plant and Equipment - Amendments prohibiting a 
company from deducting from the cost of property, plant and 
equipment amounts received from selling items produced while 
the company is preparing the asset for its intended use

IFRS 16 January 01, 2020Leases - Amendment to provide lessees with an exemption 
from assessing whether a COVID-19-related rent concession 
is a lease modification

Effective date 

(annual periods 

beginning on or 

after)

For the year ended June 30, 2020

Annual improvements to IFRSs (2018 – 2020) Cycle:

IFRS 1

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments January 01, 2022

IFRS 41 Agriculture January 01, 2020

Effective date 
(annual periods 
beginning on or 

after)

January 01, 2022First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards

Notes to the Financial Statements 
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 IFRS 16 provides a single lessee accounting model, requiring the recognition of assets and liabilities for all 
leases, together with options to exclude leases where the lease term is 12 months or less, or where the 
underlying asset is of low value. IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting in IAS 17, with the 
distinction between operating leases and finance leases being retained. However, this standard does not 
have any impact on these financial statements.

 IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

3.5 IFRS 16: Leases

4.2 Property and equipment

 Gain or loss on disposal of assets, if any, is recognized as and when incurred. 

 The carrying values are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying value may not be recoverable. 

 The Modaraba expects that the adoption of the other amendments and interpretations of the standards will 
not have any material impact and therefore will not affect the Modaraba's financial statements in the period 
of initial application.

 Income on diminishing musharaka financing is recognized on accrual basis.

 Revenue is recognised to the extent that the economic benefits will flow to the Modaraba and revenue can 
be reliably measured. Revenue is recognised at fair value of consideration received or receivable. Revenue 
from different sources is recognised on the following basis:

 Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred. Major 
renewals and improvements are capitalized if the recognition criteria are met. 

 These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation less impairment loss (if any). Depreciation is charged 
to profit and loss account applying the straight line method whereby the cost of an asset is written off over 
its estimated useful life. In respect of additions and disposals during the period, depreciation is charged on 
monthly basis on those assets which are purchased and disposed on or before 15th day of any month.

3.4 Standards or interpretations not yet effective

 IFRS 1 First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards

 The following new standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), 
which have been adopted locally by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP):

 IFRS 16 'Leases' was issued on January 01, 2016. This standard is adopted locally by the Securities and 
Exchange Commission of Pakistan and is effective for accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 
2019. IFRS 16 replaced IAS 17 'Leases', IFRIC 4 'Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease'. The 
Modaraba applied IFRS 16 with a date of initial application of January 01, 2019.

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 The principal accounting policies applied in the presentation of these financial statements are set out below.

4.1 Revenue recognition

 Income on balances in Modaraba's deposit account and Islamic term deposit receipts is recognized on 
accrual basis.

 Profit on investments is recognized on accrual basis.

 The assets' residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, 
at each year end. 

For the year ended June 30, 2020
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 The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date. 
The effect of any adjustment to residual values and useful lives is recognised prospectively as a change in 
accounting estimate.

 "Financial assets are recognized at the time when the Modaraba becomes the party to the contractual 
provisions of the instruments and derecognized when the Modaraba losses control of the contractual rights 
that comprises the financial assets. Any gain or loss on derecognition of financial assets are recognized in 
the profit and loss account. 

4.3 Intangible assets

 Intangible assets, which are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any, 
represent the cost of computer software licenses.  

 The Modaraba assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that assets excluding 
inventory may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to 
assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amounts. Where the carrying value exceeds 
the recoverable amount, assets are written down to the recoverable amount and the difference is charged to 
the profit and loss account. 

 Costs associated with maintaining these assets are charged to the profit and loss account as and when 
incurred. However, costs that are directly attributable to the identifiable asset and have probable economic 
benefits exceeding one year, are recognised as intangible asset.

 All intangible assets are estimated to have definite useful lives and are amortised using the straight line 
method over a period of three years. Amortisation on addition is charged from the day on which asset is 
available for use while no amortisation is charged up to the day the asset is disposed-off.

4.4 Financial instruments

4.4.1 Financial assets

 The management of the Modaraba determines the appropriate classification of its investments at the time 
of purchase and these are initially recognized at fair value, which is the consideration given to acquire the 
assets.

 The Modaraba classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss, fair 
value through other comprehensive income and amortized cost. The classification depends on the purpose 
for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets 
at initial recognition. All the financial assets of the Modaraba as at statement of financial position date are 
carried at amortized cost.

 All financial assets of the Modaraba as at the reporting date are carried at amortized cost.

 A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if both the following conditions are met and is not 
designated at fair value through profit or loss:

(i) it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

4.4.3 Financial liabilities

 All financial liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration received. 
These financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Modaraba becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument, and derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, 
cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on derecognition of financial liabilities are recognized in profit and loss 
account.

4.4.2 Amortized cost

(ii) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For the year ended June 30, 2020
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4.8 Diminishing musharaka financing

 The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into 
account tax credit and tax rebates realisable, if any. Under clause 100 of Part I of the Second Schedule to 
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, the non-trading income of modarabas is exempt from income tax, provided 
not less than ninety percent of its profits, after appropriation to statutory reserves as required under 
Modaraba Regulations, are distributed to the certificate holders.

4.9.2 Non-financial assets

4.6 Cash and cash equivalents

4.9.1 Financial assets

 Impairment is recognized by the Modaraba on the basis of provision requirements given under Prudential 
Regulations for Modaraba issued by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and subjective 
evaluation carried out on an ongoing basis.

4.10.1 Current tax

4.10 Taxation

 Diminishing musharaka financing are stated net of provision and suspense income. Provision is recognized 
for Diminishing musharaka financing  installments receivable, in accordance with the Prudential Regulations 
for Modarabas.

 The Modaraba assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that assets may be 
impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to assess whether they 
are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values exceed the respective 
recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment loss 
is recognized in profit and loss account. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less 
costs to sell and value in use. Where impairment loss for asset subsequently reverses, the carrying amount 
of the asset is increased to the revised recoverable amount but limited to the extent of initial cost of the 
asset. Reversal of impairment loss is recognized as income in profit and loss account.

4.9 Impairment

4.7 Trade and other payables

 Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost. For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash 
equivalents consist of cash in hand, balances at banks in current and deposit accounts and stamps in hand. 
Investment normally qualifies as a cash equivalent only when it has a short maturity of, say, three months or 
less from the date of acquisition.

 Trade and other payables are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the 
future for the goods and services received whether or not billed to the Modaraba.

4.4.4 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements 
only when the Modaraba has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and also intends 
to settle either on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

4.5 Vehicle available for Diminishing Musharaka Financing

 Vehicles purchased but not financed to the prospective customers under diminishing musharaka at the 
reporting date are recorded as non-current assets available for diminishing musharaka financing. The 
Modaraba values its vehicles available for available for diminishing musharaka financing at cost less 
impairment, if any. Cost of vehicles represent the actual purchase price paid by the Modaraba.

For the year ended June 30, 2020
Notes to the Financial Statements 



45

Annual Report 2019-20

4.17 Preliminary expenses and floatation costs

4.12 Provisions

 The Modaraba accounts for deferred taxation on all material temporary differences using the balance sheet 
liability method arising between the amounts attributed to assets and liabilities for financial reporting 
purposes and financial statements used for taxation purposes. However, deferred tax liability has not been 
provided in these financial statements as the management believes that the future income of Modaraba will 
not be taxable in the foreseeable future, due to the fact that the Modaraba intends to continue availing the 
tax exemption through profit distribution to the extent of ninety percent of distributable profit.

4.15 Earnings per certificate

 Preliminary expenses and floatation costs represent expenses incurred in respect of issue of modaraba 
certificates to the public inclusive of cost of organization and floatation of the Modaraba, cost of printing, 
publication and distribution of this prospectus, underwriting expenses, commission to the bankers to the 
issue and brokerage etc. This cost shall be amortized on prorata basis i.e. for the period of five years till the 
financial year end i.e. June 30, 2022 which is as per the requirements of Third Schedule of Modaraba 
Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981.

4.16 Related party transactions

 Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the rates of exchange 
approximating to those prevalent on the balance sheet date. Foreign currency transactions are converted 
into Pak Rupees at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of transactions. Exchange gains and losses 
on translation are recognized in profit and loss account.

 The Modaraba presents earnings per certificate (EPC) data for its certificates. Basic EPC is calculated by 
dividing the profit or loss attributable to certificate holders of the Modaraba by weighted average number of 
certificates outstanding during the period. Diluted EPC is determined by adjusting the profit or loss 
attributable to certificate holders and the weighted average number of certificates outstanding for the 
effects of all dilutive potential certificates.

 Provisions are recognized when the Modaraba has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of 
past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

4.14 Profit distribution and other appropriations of profit

4.13 Foreign currencies translation

 Profit distributions to the certificate holders and other appropriations of profit are recognized in the year in 
which these are approved. Transfer to statutory reserve and any of the mandatory appropriations as may be 
required by law are recognized in the period to which these relate.

4.11 Deferred tax

 All transactions with the related parties are priced on arm’s length basis.
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PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

Net carrying value basis
Year ended June 30, 2020

Opening net book value 2,135,380 176,288 657,708 1,372,366 4,341,742
Additions ( at cost ) 163,000 - 36,900 - 199,900
Depreciation charge (501,309) (52,574) (323,826) (340,799) (1,218,508)

Closing net book value 1,797,071 123,714 370,782 1,031,567 3,323,134

Gross carrying value basis

Year ended June 30, 2020
Cost 3,007,870 262,871 1,122,820 2,044,794 6,438,355
Accumulated depreciation (1,210,799) (139,157) (752,038) (1,013,227) (3,115,221)

Net book value 1,797,071 123,714 370,782 1,031,567 3,323,134

Net carrying value basis
Year ended June 30, 2019

Opening net book value 2,224,774 228,862 691,380 1,661,667 4,806,683
Additions ( at cost ) 342,000 - 249,000 50,794 641,794
Depreciation charge (431,394) (52,574) (282,672) (340,095) (1,106,735)

Closing net book value 2,135,380 176,288 657,708 1,372,366 4,341,742

Gross carrying value basis

Year ended June 30, 2019
Cost 2,844,870 262,871 1,085,920 2,044,794 6,238,455
Accumulated depreciation (709,490) (86,583) (428,212) (672,428) (1,896,713)

Net book value 2,135,380 176,288 657,708 1,372,366 4,341,742

Annual rate of depreciation (% per annum) 16.67% 20% 25% - 33.33% 16.67%

-----------------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------------

Total
Leasehold 

improvements

Furniture and 

fixtures
Office 

equipment Vehicle

5

2020 2019

Note Rupees Rupees6 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

6.1 Net carrying value basis

Opening net book value 181,856 296,710

Amortization charge (114,854) (114,854)

Closing net book value 67 ,002 181,856

Gross carrying value basis

Cost 344,565 344,565

Accumulated amortization (277,563) (162,709)

Net book value 67 ,002 181,856

Amortization rate % per annum 33% 33%

7 VEHICLES AVAILABLE FOR DIMINISHING MUSHARAKA FINANCING

7 .1                       -           28,889,899 

Vehicles available for diminishing musharaka 

financing 

For the year ended June 30, 2020
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8 DIMINISHING MUSHARAKA FINANCING

Secured

Diminishing musharaka financing 8.1 & 8.2 187,805,663 164,218,488

(64,758,281) (36,963,869)

123,047,382 127 ,254,619

8.3 7 ,405,700 3,799,100

130,453,082 131,053,719

Advance against diminishing musharaka financing 

Less: Current portion of diminishing musharaka 

financing 

2020 2019

Note Rupees Rupees

7.1 This represents amount that was paid to local car assemblers / dealers against advance booking of vehicles. 
The motor vehicles have been delivered by the assemblers / dealers as at the reporting date and these 
vehicles have been placed with the various car dealers/showrooms for onward financing to prospective 
customers.

8.2 Due to the prevailing conditions amid CoVID-19, as further detailed in note 35.2 to these financial 
statements, the State Bank of Pakistan has issued BPRD Circular Letter No. 13 of 2020 (Para 3(a) of 
Regulation R-8 - Rescheduling / Restructuring of Financing Facilities) dated March 26, 2020 whereby 
certain relief measures were allowed in the Prudential Regulations for Modarabas. In pursuance of the above 
mentioned BPRD Circular, SECP vide circular No. 15 of 2020 dated April 24, 2020 has allowed relaxation to 
all lending Modarabas in terms of serial No. 5 of Part III of circular No. 4 of 2004 dated January 28,2004. 
Accordingly, during the year, diminishing musharaka financing of certain customers amounting to Rs. 29.100 
million was restructured by Modaraba. However, the rescheduling of diminishing musharaka financing does 
not have an impact on these financial statements.

8.1 This represents diminishing musharaka financing for a term of three to five years in order to provide residual 
value car financing on diminishing musharaka basis.

8.3 This represents amount paid to supplier for booking of vehicle for diminishing musharaka financing.

2020 2019

Note Rupees Rupees

9 PRELIMINARY EXPENSES AND FLOATATION COSTS

Preliminary expenses and floatation costs 9.1 7,881,758 10,496,639

Amortization during the year (2,631,070) (2,614,881)
5,250,688 7 ,881,758

9.1 This represents expenses incurred in respect of issue of the Modaraba certificates to the public and includes 
cost of organization and floatation of the Modaraba, cost of printing, publication and distribution of the 
prospectus, underwriting expenses, commission to the bankers to the issue and brokerage and other 
ancillary cost. Preliminary expenses and floatation costs are being amortized on prorata basis over the 
period of five years as per the requirements of Third Schedule of Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 
1981.

10 SHORT TERM INVESTMENT

Islamic Term Deposit Receipts (TDR) 10.1 & 10.2 100,000,000 70,000,000

10.1 This represents term deposit receipts (TDR) in Soneri Bank Limited having a tenure of six months and carry 
floating profit rate ranging from 7.5% to 12.75% per annum (2019: 10.25% to 11.60% per annum).
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10.2 Movement in Islamic Term Deposit Receipt (TDR)

Opening balances 70,000,000 -

Add: Additions during the year 80,000,000 70,000,000

Less: Matured during the year (50,000,000) -
100,000,000 70,000,000

11 SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLE

Short term prepayments 429,011 356,446

Other receivable 11.1 822,161 1,765,603
1,251,172 2,122,049

2020 2019

Note Rupees Rupees

11.1 This includes Diminishing Musharaka financing installement receivable amounting to Rs. 0.638 million. (2019: 
Rs. 0.072 million) and insurance and takaful premium receivable amounting to Rs. 1,298 (2019: Rs. 1.352 
million). 

2020 2019

Note Rupees Rupees

12 ACCRUED PROFIT

Accrued profit on:

Islamic term deposit certificates - 277 ,397

Islamic Term Deposit Receipts (TDR) 334,750 681,964

Modaraba's deposit account 425,917 51,136
760,667 1,010,497

13 TAXATION

Advance tax 13.1 & 13.2 5,530,605 4,697 ,122

13.1 This includes advance tax amounting to Rs. 4.1 million (2019: Rs. 3.5 million) pertaining to vehicles purchased 
for diminishing musharaka financing. The amounts are adjustable against diminishing musharaka contracts 
upon receipt of refunds from tax authorities.

13.2 This includes the advance tax deducted by the various withholding agents amounting to Rs. 1.430 million 
(2019: Rs. 1.147 million)  under various sections of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The management has 
claimed the tax deducted in return for the Tax Year 2019, since the management is confident that the same 
shall be refunded.

14 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Stamps in hand 26,600 31,200

Cash with banks in:

Modaraba's deposit account 14.1 34,329,172 7 ,099,723

Current accounts 14.2 166,837 144,868

Habib Islamic Investment Certificate 14.3 & 14.4 - 25,000,000

34,522,609 32,275,791

2020 2019

Note Rupees Rupees
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14.3 Movement in Habib Islamic Investment Certificate

Opening balances 25,000,000 25,000,000

Add: Additions during the year 75,000,000 100,000,000

Less: Matured during the year (100,000,000) (100,000,000)

- 25,000,000

14.1 These carry profit at rates ranging from  6% to 10.80% (2019: 5% to 9.25%)  per annum.

14.2 This balance includes an amount of Rs. 0.02 million  (2019: Rs. 0.020 million ) which has been deposited in 
the State Bank of Pakistan, Banking Services Corporation Karachi to maintain a minimum balance of Rs. 0.01 
million to facilitate recovery of Electronic Credit Information Bureau (ECIB) service charges on monthly 
basis.

2020 2019

Note Rupees Rupees

14.4 This represents investments in Habib Islamic Income Certificates issued by Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited, 
the Holding Company having tenure ranging from one to three months and carry profit at the rate of 11.5% 
(2019: 7.5%) per annum.

2020 2019

Note Rupees Rupees

15

Modaraba certificates of Rs. 10 each

2020

  30,000,000 

Certificates issued 

as fully paid in 

cash

15.1 &

 15.2 300,000,000 300,000,000

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CERTIFICATE CAPITAL

2019

        30,000,000 

Number of certificates

15.2 Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited (the Holding Company), held 18,000,000 (60%) certificates of Rs.10 each 
as at June 30, 2020.

15.1 Habib Metropolitan Modaraba Management Company  (Private) Limited (the Management Company) held 
3,000,000 (10%) certificates of Rs. 10 each as at June 30, 2020.

16

16.1           9,337,926           3,021,377 

        26,101,707           9,085,511 

        35,439,633         12,106,888 

Revenue 

Unappropriated profit

Capital reserve

Statutory reserve

RESERVE

2020 2019

Note Rupees Rupees

16.1 Prudential Regulations for Modarabas issued by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan  (SECP) 
requires creation of reserve fund to which shall be credited:

b) thereafter a sum not less than 5% of its after tax profits.

a) an amount not less than 20% and not more than 50% of its after tax profits till such time the reserve fund 
equals the amount of paid-up capital; and

For the year ended June 30, 2020
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17 CREDITORS, ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Provision for Workers' Welfare Fund 17 .1 596,422 308,304
Adjustable against diminishing musharaka 17 .2 4,100,000 3,550,000

Diminishing musharaka customer contribution - 1,187,700

Accrued expenses 242,982 110,638

Residual Value received in advance                  1,933,929 514,421

Other liabilities 3,084,754 1,298,584

Audit fee payable 424,710 335,200
10,455,631 7 ,304,847

2020 2019

Note Rupees Rupees

 There were no contingencies as at June 30, 2020.

18 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

 The matter was taken up by the Modaraba Association of Pakistan (MAP) with the Sindh Revenue Board 
(SRB) collectively on behalf of various modaraba management companies (including the Management 
Company of the Modaraba) whereby it was contested that modarabas should be excluded from the ambit 
of the SWWF Act as these were not industrial establishments due to their nature of business. The SRB held 
that modarabas were included in the definition of financial institutions as per the Financial Institution 
(Recovery of Finances) Ordinance, 2001 and were, hence, required to register and pay SWWF under the 
SWWF Act. 

 During the year, the Modaraba received a notice vide letter no. SRB /AC-37/2019-20/80 dated August 19, 
2019, wherein, the Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) has advised the Modaraba to pay off all its liabilities falling 
due under the Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund Act, 2014 (SWWF Act). As per SWWF Act, Workers' Welfare 
Fund (WWF) levy is required to be paid on total income accruing after December 31, 2013. As the Modaraba 
has its operations all across Pakistan therefore total income declared in its tax return is a cumulative sum of 
income for all provinces but the management understands that the SWWF Act is limited only to the 
province of Sindh and till the time there is any mechanism available for apportionment of total income 
relevant to the province of Sindh, no WWF liability to SRB can be paid out. On these grounds and 
foreseeing the expected WWF demand along with penal actions from SRB, the Modaraba filed an appeal 
with the Honorable Sindh High Court (SHC). However, as per the order of Honourable High Court of Sindh 
dated March 16, 2020 the Modarba  has deposited  an amount of Rs. 0.283 million for the period from 
October 06, 2017 to June 30, 2019 to Sindh Worker Welfare Fund (SWWF) based on the income pertaining 
to Sindh.

17.2 This relates to withholding tax deposited pertaining to vehicles purchased for diminishing musharaka 
financing. The amounts are adjustable against diminishing musharaka financing upon receipt of refunds from 
tax authorities.

18.1 Contingencies

17.1 As a consequence of the 18th amendment to the Constitution of Pakistan, in May 2015, the Sindh Workers’ 
Welfare Fund Act, 2014 (SWWF Act) had been passed by the Government of Sindh as a result of which 
every industrial establishment located in the Province of Sindh, the total income of which in any accounting 
year is not less than Rs 0.5 million, is required to pay Sindh Workers’ Welfare Fund (SWWF) in respect of 
that year a sum equal to two percent of such income.

18.2 Commitments

18.2.1 Commitments in respect of financing transactions amounted to Rs. 2.528 million (2019: Rs. 13.037 million) as 
at June 30, 2020.

For the year ended June 30, 2020

Management fee payable 3,222,729 -
Sales tax on management fee payable 418,955 -
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2020 2019

Rupees Rupees

18.2.2

Receivables - not later than one year         64,758,281 36,963,869

Receivables - later than one year and not later than 

      130,453,082 131,053,719

      195,211,363       168,017,588 

Musharaka receivables

five years

19 OTHER FINANCE INCOME

 During the year, the Modaraba has earned other finance income of Rs. 4.322 million (2019:Rs. 8.852 million) 
on the vehicles available for diminishing musharaka because of appreciation in prices in the automobile 
industry. Difference between the purchase cost and fair value at the time of Diminishing Mushraka Financing 
has been recorded as other finance income.

2020 2019

Note Rupees Rupees20 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances and other benefits 7,763,343 6,887,578

Repairs and maintenance 371,893 408,184

Legal and professional charges 2,169,422 1,452,326

Fees and subscription 1,594,028 1,778,200

Printing and stationery 317 ,550 392,397

Utilities expenses 347 ,317 601,803

Takaful premium 222,078 165,177

Depreciation 5 1,218,508 1,106,735

Amortisation 6 114,854 114,854

Auditor's remuneration 20.1 716,958 643,300

Advertisement expense 288,552 1,188,776

IT related expenses 121,386 71,933

Others 462,879 461,807

15,708,768 15,273,070

20.1 Auditor's remuneration

Annual fee 302,500 275,000

Half yearly review fee 121,000 110,000

          213,840 179,800

            42,350 41,500

Sales tax 37 ,268 37 ,000

716,958 643,300

21 FINANCIAL CHARGES

Bank charges 147 ,357 184,415

Special reports, certification and sundry advisor services

Out of pocket expenses

22 MODARABA MANAGEMENT COMPANY'S FEE

 As per section 18 of Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980, the 
remuneration of the Modaraba Company in respect of the Modaraba floated by it shall be a fixed percentage 
of the net annual profits of the Modaraba and shall not exceed ten percent of the net profits as prescribed.

 In accordance with the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981, the Modaraba Management 
Company has charged 10% of profits during the year which is payable to the Modaraba Management 
Company amounting to Rs. 3.222 million (2019: nil). Furthermore, during the current year, an amount of Rs. 
0.419 million (2019 : nil) at the rate of 13% was charge on account of sales tax on management fee levied 
under Sindh Sales Tax on Service Act, 2011. 

For the year ended June 30, 2020
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23 TAXATION - NET

23.1 The income of non-trading modarabas is exempt from tax under clause 100 of the Second Schedule of the 
Income Tax Ordinance 2001, provided not less than ninety percent of its profits after appropriation to 
statutory reserves as required under Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) 
Ordinance, 1980 is distributed to the certificate holders. The Modaraba has decided to continue availing the 
tax exemption and hence no provision has been made in there financial statements for tax liabilities for the 
year.

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

24

The earnings per certificate as required under IAS 33 "Earnings per share" is given below:

Profit for the year 31,582,745 11,094,811

Weighted average number of certificates outstanding 30,000,000 30,000,000

Earnings per certificate - Basic and diluted (Rupees) 1.05 0.37

EARNINGS PER CERTIFICATE - BASIC AND DILUTED

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

 The Modaraba's objective in managing risk is the creation and protection of certificate holders' value. Risk is 
inherent in the Modaraba's activities, but it is managed through monitoring and controlling activities which 
are primarily setup to be performed, based on limits established by the Modaraba Management Company, 
Modaraba's constitutive documents and the regulations and directives of the SECP. The Modaraba's 
activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including profit rate risk, equity price risk and 
fair value risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board of Directors of the Modaraba Management Company 
has overall responsibility for the establishment and over sight of the Modaraba's risk management 
framework.

 The Modaraba's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and 
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Modaraba's financial performance.

26.2 Profit rate risk 

 Profit rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market profit rates.

 There were no convertible dilutive potential ordinary certificates outstanding as on June 30, 2020 which 
have dilutive effect on earnings per certificate.

26.1 Market risk

 The Modaraba primarily invests in diminishing musharaka, and Islamic Investment Instruments. Such 
investments are subject to varying degrees of risk, which emanate from various factors that include but are 
not limited to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

 Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to 
changes in market variables such as profit rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices.

25 REMUNERATION OF EXECUTIVES

Remuneration 3,932,000 3,900,000

Number of executives at the end of the year 1 1

The executive is also provided with the free use of vehicle owned by the Modaraba.

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

For the year ended June 30, 2020
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 Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Modaraba does not have any financial instruments in 
foreign currencies and hence is not exposed to such risk.

 The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Modaraba's financial liabilities based on contractual 
undiscounted payments.

 Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Modaraba will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations 
associated with financial liabilities. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Modaraba could be 
required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected. The Modaraba's approach to managing liquidity is to 
ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under 
both normal and stressful conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the 
Modaraba's reputation.

26.3 Foreign currency risk

26.4 Liquidity risk

As at June 30, 2020
Six to Twelve 

months

One to five 

years

 Over five 

years 

 Above five 

years 

Total 

contractual 

cash flows

Creditors, accrued and other liabilities 10,455,631 - - - 10,455,631

Dividend payable 21,976 - - - 21,976

Total 10,477,607 - - - 10,477,607

As at June 30, 2019
Six to Twelve 

months

One to five 

years

 Over five 

years 

 Above five 

years 

Total 

contractual 

cash flows

Creditors, accrued and other liabilities 7,304,847 7,304,847

Dividend payable 6,567 - - - 6,567

Total 7,311,414 - - - 7,311,414

Rupees 

Rupees 

 Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the 
Modaraba by failing to discharge its obligation. The Modaraba's policy is to enter into financial contracts 
with reputable counter parties in accordance with the internal guidelines, offering document and regulatory 
requirements. The table below analyses the Modaraba's maximum exposure to credit risk. The maximum 
exposure is shown gross, before the effect of mitigation through the use of collateral agreements at 
reporting date:

26.5 Credit risk

Rupees Rupees

Diminishing musharaka finance 130,453,082 131,053,719

Current portion of diminishing musharaka financing 64,758,281 36,963,869

Other receivables 822,161 1,765,603

Accrued profit 760,667 1,010,497

Short term investments 100,000,000 70,000,000

Cash and bank balances 34,522,609 32,275,791
331,316,800 273,069,479

20192020
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 Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors affect the group of 
counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Modaraba's total credit 
exposure. The Modaraba's portfolio of financial assets is broadly diversified and transactions are entered 
into with diverse credit worthy counterparties thereby mitigating any significant concentration of credit risk. 
The table below analyses the Modaraba's concentration of credit risk by industrial distribution.

26.6

 Rupees  %  Rupees  % 

Individuals     59,057,361 30%       62,348,257 37%

Corporate   136,154,002 70%      105,669,331 63%

  195,211,363      168,017,588 

Rupees Rupees
26.7 Financial instruments by category

Financial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost

Diminishing musharaka finance 130,453,082 131,053,719

Current portion of diminishing musharaka financing 64,758,281 36,963,869

Other receivables 822,161 1,765,603

Accrued profit 760,667 1,010,497

Cash and bank balances 34,522,609 32,275,791

Short term investments 100,000,000 70,000,000
331,316,800 273,069,479

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Creditors, accrued and other liabilities 10,455,631 7,304,847

Dividend payable 21,976 6,567
10,477,607 7,311,414

Segment by class of business for musharaka finances

2019

 2019 

2020

 2020 

 Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Modaraba is a going concern without any 
intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on 
adverse terms.

27 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

 The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements are approximate 
to their fair values. Fair value is determined on the basis of the objective evidence at each required date. The 
following table compares the carrying amounts and fair values of the Modaraba’s financial assets and 
financial liabilities as at June 30, 2020.

 Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between 
knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction. Consequently differences can arise between 
carrying values and the fair value estimates.

 Financial assets which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing on the 
balance sheet date. The estimated fair value of all other financial assets and liabilities is considered not 
significantly different from book value as the items are short term in nature.

For the year ended June 30, 2020
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Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

amount value amount value

Financial assets
Loans and receivables at amortised cost

Diminishing musharaka finance 130,453,082 130,453,082 131,053,719 131,053,719
Current portion of diminishing musharaka financing 64,758,281 64,758,281 36,963,869 36,963,869
Other receivables 822,161 822,161 1,765,603 1,765,603
Accrued profit 760,667 760,667 1,010,497 1,010,497
Cash and bank balances 34,522,609 34,522,609 32,275,791 32,275,791
Short term investments 100,000,000 100,000,000 70,000,000 70,000,000

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Creditors, accrued and other liabilities 10,455,631 10,455,631 7,304,847 7,304,847
Dividend payable 21,976 21,976 6,567 6,567

As at June 30, 2019

--------------------------------------------Rupees------------------------------------------ 

As at June 30, 2020

 As at June 30, 2020, none of the financial instruments of the Modaraba are carried at fair value.

27.1  Fair value hierarchy 

 Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities  

 During the period, there were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair value measurements and into or 
out of level 3 fair value measurements.

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are classified in their entirety into only one of the three levels.

 The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the financial asset or financial liability is categorised is 
determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement.   

27.2 Transfers during the year

 In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Modaraba may adjust the amount of profit 
distributed to certificate-holders, issue new certificates or sell assets to reduce debt.

 "Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise 
significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions and include a 
subsidiary company, associated companies with or without common directors, retirement benefit funds, 
directors, and key management personnel.

 The Modaraba's prime objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going 
concern in order to provide adequate returns for certificate-holders and benefits for other stakeholders and 
to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

 Level 3: inputs  for  the  asset  or  liability  that  are  not  based  on  observable  market  data 
(unobservable inputs). 

 The Modaraba has related party relationship with its Holding Company, Management Company, Employee 
Benefit Plans, and its Key Management Personnel.

 Level 2: inputs  other  than  quoted  prices  included  within  Level  1  that  are  observable  for  the asset 
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) 

28 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

 The Modaraba’s objective in managing risks is the creation and protection of Certificate holders’ value. Risk 
is inherent in the Modaraba’s activities, but it is managed through a process of ongoing identification, 
measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. The process of risk management is 
critical to the Modaraba’s continuing profitability. The Modaraba is exposed to market risk (which includes 
profit rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk arising from the financial instruments it holds.

29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
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Nature of 

transactions

Rupees Rupees

Holding Company

         5,298,168          6,902,887 

       75,000,000      175,000,000 

     100,000,000      225,000,000 

Relationship with the

Modaraba 2019

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited

Profit on Modaraba's

deposits accounts and

Islamic term deposit

receipts

Investments purchased

Investments matured

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited

2020

 A number of transactions are entered into with related parties in the normal course of business. These 
include financings, investments and sharing of common expenses.

 The detail of transactions with related parties and balances with them, apart from compensation to 
executives as disclosed in note 25, is given below:

Dividend paid          4,950,000          1,800,000 

Bank charges             147,357             184,415 

            492,258          1,433,929 

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited

Reimbursement of 

expenses

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

Associate Company

            112,770               54,425 

Management Company
Dividend paid             825,000             300,000 

Provident Fund 

Contribution

Habib Metropolitan Modaraba 

Management Company (Private) 

Limited

Habiib Meto Modaraba Employee 

Provident Fund

29.1 Year end balances

Holding Company

    34,424,021          5,284,166 

                   -          25,000,000 

         425,908             585,761 

         278,774             213,483 Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited

Bank balances

Short term investments

Accrued on profit bank

accounts and Islamic

term deposit certificates

Prepaid expenses

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited

29.2 Group shared services

 The Modaraba has entered into arrangements with associated undertakings to share various administrative, 
human resource and related costs on agreed terms.

For the year ended June 30, 2020

Management fee 3,222,729 -

Management Company
Habib Metropolitan Modaraba 

Management Company (Private) 

Limited

Accrued expense 3,222,729 -
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Proceeds realized 300,000,000 300,000,000

Purchase of property and equipment          6,438,355 6,238,455

Purchase of intangible assets             344,565             344,565 

Preliminary expenses and floatation cost        12,422,100 12,422,100

  200,393,688 200,393,688Vehicles available for diminishing musharaka financing

Held for working capital, purchase of additional assets / 

investments etc.

30 UTILIZATION OF PROCEEDS OF INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

 The break-up of utilization of proceeds of initial public offering is being presented under the requirements of 
Regulation 16(I) of Chapter VIII of Public Offering Regulations, 2017. The Modaraba has utilized the proceeds 
from initial public offering as follows:

    80,401,292     80,601,192 

300,000,000    300,000,000    

Held for working capital, purchase of additional assets / 

investments etc.

2020 2019

Rupees Rupees

31 CASH USED IN OPERATIONS

Profit before taxation        31,582,745        11,094,811 

Adjustment of non-cash and other items:

Depreciation          1,218,508          1,106,735 

         2,631,070          2,614,881 

Amortization of intangible asset             114,854             114,854 

Financial charges             147,357             184,415 

Profit on Islamic Certificate        (1,697,260)        (3,275,082)

Income from diminishing musharaka financing      (32,661,276)      (13,757,843)

Profit on Islamic Term Deposit Receipts (TDR)        (2,830,619)        (1,926,362)

Profit on Modaraba's deposit accounts        (8,693,275)        (1,393,474)

Movement in working capital 31.1      (23,772,751)      (28,471,023)

     (33,960,647)      (33,708,088)

Amortization of preliminary expenses and floatation 

costs

31.1 Movement in working capital

Increase in current assets:

Short term prepayments and other receivables             870,877        (1,732,603)

Current portion of diminishing musharaka financing      (27,794,412)      (33,065,667)

Increase in current liabilities:

Creditors, accrued and other liabilities          3,150,784          6,327 ,247 

     (23,772,751)      (28,471,023)

33 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

32 NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

 The Board of Directors of the Modaraba Management Company in their meeting held on September 23, 
2020 have approved profit distribution at the rate of  7 % i.e. Re. 0.70 per certificate for the year ended June 
30, 2019. These financial statements do not reflect this distribution.

 These financial statements was authorized for issue on September 23, 2020 by the Board of Directors of the 
Habib Metropolitan Modaraba Management Company (Private) Limited.

For the year ended June 30, 2020
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 Corresponding figures have been re-arranged and re-classified, wherever necessary, for the purpose of 
comparison and for better presentation. However no reclassification has been made during the period.

36 GENERAL

36.1 Amounts have been presented and rounded off to the nearest Pak rupees unless otherwise stated.

35 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

36.2 IMPACT OF COVID-19 ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 In March 2020, the World Health Organization ("WHO") declared the outbreak of the novel coronavirus 
(known as COVID-19) as a global pandemic. The rapid spread of the virus has caused governments around 
the world to implement stringent measures to help control its spread, including, without limitation, 
quarantines, "stay-at-home" or "shelter-in-place" orders, social-distancing mandates, travel restrictions, and 
closures or reduced operations for businesses, governmental agencies, schools and other institutions. The 
industry, along with global economic conditions generally, has been significantly disrupted by the pandemic.

 The COVID-19 pandemic and associated impacts on economic activity had no major effect on the 
Modaraba's results of operations and financial condition as of June 30, 2020. The Modaraba is continuously 
evaluating the impacts of COVID-19, which has had global implications. In response to these developments, 
the Modaraba has taken action to ensure the safety of its employees and other stakeholders, and initiated a 
number of initiatives. 

 Modaraba has worked on ability of its liquidity profile to accommodate various customer's request on 
rescheduling of their long term credit facilities. Rescheduling / deferment of monthly payments if requested 
was only accepted after conducting proper assessment.

34 CORRESPONDING FIGURES

 The number of employees as at year end was 8 (2019: 9) and average number of employees during the year 
was 8 (2019: 9).

DIRECTOR                     DIRECTOR                     CHIEF EXECUTIVE                    CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

For Habib Metropolitan Modaraba Management Company (Private) Limited

(Modaraba Management Company) 
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